CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

AGENDA
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
September 22, 2016
11:00 - 12:00 PM Pelican Room #107

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PUBLIC COMMENT - Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114 (2013) the Audit Committee will allow
public comment on any matter either identified on this meeting agenda as requiring action, or
anticipated to come before the Committee for action in reasonable proximity to this meeting.
Speakers shall be limited to three minutes per person and the assignment of one person’s time
to another or designation of group spokesperson shall be allowed at the discretion of the
Committee Chairman.

III.  APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 23, 2016 MINUTES — Action Item

IV.  EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS —Aneth Williams

A. Procurement Process for Selection of the External Auditor- Info Item

B. Assignment of committee member(s) to selection committee- Action Item

V.  INTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS- Protiviti

A. Status Update: Fiscal 2016 Internal Audit Plan- Info Item
B. Procurement and Contract Billing Audits
1. Contract Selections- Info Item
2. Subject Matter Expert Travel Expenses- Action Item
C. Review and Acceptance of Prior Audit Recommendations Follow-Up- Action Item

VI.  OTHER BUSINESS

VII.  ADJOURNMENT

This meeting is open to the public.
Note: Any person who decides to appeal any decision made at this meeting will need record of the
proceedings and for that purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made
which includes the testimony any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based, per Florida Statute
286.0105.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as
defined by the ADA needs special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, then not later
than two (2) business days prior to the proceeding, he or she should contact the Central Florida

Expressway Authority at (407) 690-5000.
4974 ORL TOWER RD. ORLANDO, FL 32807 | PHONE: (407) 690-5000 | FAX: (407) 690-5011

WWW.CFXWAY.COM M



Persons who require translation services, which are provided at no cost, should contact CFX at (407) 690-5000
x5317 or by email at Iranetta.dennis@CFXway.com at least three business days prior to the event.

4974 ORL TOWER RD. ORLANDO, FL 32807 | PHONE: (407) 690-5000 | FAX: (407) 690-5011

WWW.CFXWAY.COM M



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

MINUTES
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
June 23, 2016

Committee Members Present:

Brian Battles, City of Orlando Representative, Chairman
Kristy Mullane, Lake County Representative

Kaye Dover, Osceola County Representative

Tamrin Mahon, Citizen Representative

Eric Gassman, Orange County Representative

Committee Member Not Present:
Bruce McMenemy, Seminole County Representative

Also Present:

Ruth Valentin, Recording Secretary/Office Coordinator
Laura Kelley, Executive Director

Linda Lanosa, Deputy General Counsel

Lisa Lumbard, Chief Financial Officer

Corey Quinn, Chief of Technology/ Operations

Jeff Tecau, Protiviti

David Taylor, Protiviti

Chris Porter, Protiviti

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Chairman Brian Battles.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was made by Ms. Dover and seconded by Ms. Mullane to accept the April 27, 2016 Audit Committee
minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously with five members voting AYE by voice vote; Mr.
McMenemy was not present.

Page 1 of 4



MINUTES

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
June 23, 2016

4. INTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS

Status of Fiscal 2016 Internal Audit Plan

Jeff Tecau presented the status of the Fiscal Year 2016 Internal Audit Plan.

Review and Acceptance of 2015 PCl Assessment with Report on Compliance

David Taylor presented the 2015 PCI Assessment with Report on Compliance for review and acceptance. (Presentation
attached as Exhibit “A”)

A motion was made by Mr. Gassman and seconded by Ms. Mullane to accept the PCl Assessment with Report
on Compliance. The motion carried unanimously with five members voting AYE by voice vote; Mr. McMenemy
was not present.

Confirmation of No Disagreements with Management

Jeff Tecau informed the Audit Committee members that Protiviti had no disagreements with management for Fiscal
Year 2016.

5. ANNUAL MANAGEMENT REVIEWS OF INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS

Effectiveness of the Internal Control System, Including IT Security and Control- Lisa Lumbard spoke regarding the
effectiveness of internal control.

- All policies are approved by the Board and procedures are approved by the Executive Director. They are
reviewed every two years to be updated as necessary.
- CFX has open communication with internal and external auditors that help ensure internal controls.

Process for Assessing, Monitoring and Controlling Significant Risks- Lisa Lumbard spoke regarding the process for
assessing, monitoring and controlling significant risks.

- Protiviti completes an Annual Risk Assessment to gather opinions on risks that Board members and staff

believe CFX may have.
Employees can contact the hotline for anything that needs to be addressed.

System for Monitoring Compliance with Laws and Requlations- Linda spoke in regards to monitoring compliance.

- Two attorneys in house

- They attend all management meetings and all Board and Committee meetings
They are available as needed with an open door policy

- Contracts are reviewed and approved by legal

- They monitor or defend or prosecute all litigation

Page 2 of 4



MINUTES

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

June 23, 2016

- They review policies, rules, and procedures

- Ali necessary filing and disclosure are coordinated with outside counsel

- No action suits, proceedings, or investigations are pending or threated against CFX that would impact our
obligations, and we proceed no notice of default
Implemented self-training on public records act and sunshine laws annually

Adequacy, Administration and Compliance with the Authority's Code of Ethics-Linda Lanosa spoke regarding
effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with the ethics code.

-Automated system for tracking disclosure forms
-Hotline- No reports

-Financial Disclosure forms due July 1, 2016
-Voting conflicts are reviewed internally

Procedures for "Hotline” Reporting- Laura Kelley spoke regarding the hotline.

- Tested occasionally

- The Chairman of the Board, the Executive Director, and the General Counsel are notified when the hotline has
been used.

- Ifthe call is about the Executive Director or the General Counsel, they are excluded from being notified.

6. ANNUAL DISCUSSION REGARDING INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS

The Audit Committee Charter requires an annual discussion regarding internal audit performance and effectiveness.

Comments received regarding Protiviti's performance:
- Discussions are clear and detailed
Reports and formats are good
Relationship and reports are professional
- Recommendation was made to keep committee informed about audit plan throughout the Fiscal Year

7. ANNUAL DISCUSSION REGARDING AUDIT COMMITTEE AND INDIVIDUAL MEMBER PERFORMANCE

The Audit Committee Charter requires an annual discussion regarding Audit Committee and individual member
performance.

Comments received regarding the committee as a whole:

- Brian Battles has done a good job as chairman by making comments and coming prepared
- Committee functions great and comes prepared

Page 3 of 4



MINUTES

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

June 23, 2016

10.

1.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF COMPLETION OF RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Jeff Tecau provided background that Protiviti helps the Audit Committee ensure it completes all of its annual
responsibilities as outlined in the Audit Committee Charter. All responsibilities have been completed for fiscal year 2016.
A matrix has been provided to confirm completion of responsibilities. (Matrix attached as Exhibit “B")

ANNUAL ROTATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIR

On September 11, 2016 Bruce McMenemy, Seminole County Representative will become the new Audit Committee
Chairman.

OTHER BUSINESS

It was discussed that an additional Audit Committee meeting may be scheduled before September in order to include
the required communication from our external auditors.

It was requested to have periodic financial updates moving forward.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 11:11 a.m.

Minutes approved on , 2016.

Pursuant to the Florida Public Records Law and CFX Records Management Policy, audio tapes of all Board and applicable
Committee meetings are maintained and available upon request to the Records Management Liaison Officer at
publicrecords@CFXway.com or 4974 ORL Tower Road, Orlando, FL 32807.

Page 4 of 4



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

TO: CFX Audit Committee Members
FROM: Lisa Lumbard, CFO

DATE: September 16, 2016

SUBJECT:  Procurement of External Auditing Services

CFX’s current contract with its external auditors, Moore Stephens Lovelace, is expiring February 28, 2017 and
there are no renewals left. Attached is the previous RFP that was used in the procurement. Aneth Williams,
Director of Procurement, will be at the Audit Committee Meeting to get feedback from the Committee as to any
changes that you may want for this procurement.

Per the Audit Committee Charter and CFX’s Procurement Policy and Procedures, the Committee is to appoint a
member to serve on the Evaluation Committee for all external audit services. Staff is requesting that the Audit
Committee appoint a member at this meeting to serve on the External Auditing Services Evaluation Committee.
A tentative schedule of the procurement process will be provided at the Audit Committee Meeting to help in the
selection of the member.

4974 ORL TOWER RD. ORLANDO, FL 32807 | PHONE: (407) 690-5000 | FAX: (407) 690-5011

WWW.CFXWAY.COM m



PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 000841
PROPOSAL DUE DATE: OCTOBER 28, 2012

EXPRESSWAY
AUTHORITY

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY



PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
FOR
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 000841

September 2011

Members of the Board

Walter A. Ketcham, Jr., Chairman
Tanya J. Wilder, Vice Chairman
Teresa Jacobs, Secretary/Treasurer
Noranne B. Downs, P.E., Ex-Officio Member
R. Scott Batterson, P.E., Member

Executive Director

Michael Snyder, P.E.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
EXHIBIT “A” — SCOPE OF SERVICES
EXHIBIT “B” - METHOD OF COMPENSATION
EXHIBIT “C” - CONTRACT

EXHIBIT “D” - FEE SCHEDULE

TC-1

Page
NTC-1toNTC-2
PSR-1 to PSR-17
A-1to A-9
B-1to B-2
C-1toC-13

D-1toD-2



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
CONTRACT NO. 000841

The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority (Authority) requires the services of an
independent Certified Public Accountant firm to perform annual audit examinations of the
Authority’s financial statements. Consideration will be given to only those respondents who are
qualified to perform the work as determined by the Authority. Proposal documents are available
for download at the Authority’s web site located at
www.expresswayauthority.com/Corporate/administration/Contracting/Default.aspx. Proposer
registration is required to access and download documents. Instructions for registration are
provided on the website.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES: Services shall be as detailed in the Scope of Services and
may include, but are not limited to: producing a financial audit as defined in Section 11.45(1)(c)
of Florida Statutes comprising the Annual Financial Report including the general purpose
financial statements and certain supplementary financial data; annual financial and compliance
audit of all Federal and State grant-in-aid programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and
the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, if applicable under requirements of OMB Circular A-
133; annual compliance attestation of State grants and aids appropriations to the extent required
by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General; annual Management Letter as defined by
Auditor General Rule 10.554(1)(i) including a statement in accordance with Sections 218.39(4),
Florida Statutes; a separate audit and report of the Schedule of Reimbursable costs to the Florida
Department of Transportation; and any other required reports under statute of GAAP.

The annual audits to be performed will be for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, 2013, 2014
with two options to renew for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and 2016.

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: The firm shall be a member in good standing of both
the American Institute of Certified Public Accounts and the Florida Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and meet the appropriate criteria for independence.

The firm shall be a legal entity in the State of Florida and shall have performed continuous
C.P.A. services for a minimum of five years.

Firms must demonstrate they have the ability to provide the services necessary throughout the
duration of the contract and are willing to meet the requirements of the Authority as stated in the
Scope of Services.

The Authority will evaluate and determine the relative ability of each firm to perform the
required services based upon the information provided by the firm in response to the RFP.

NON-SOLICITATION PROVISION: From the first date of publication of this Notice, no
person may contact any Authority Member, Officer, Employee, or any selection committee



member, with respect to this Notice or the services to be provided, except as related to the
submittal requirements detailed in the RFP. Reference is made to the lobbying guidelines of the
Authority for further information regarding this Non-Solicitation Provision.

SUBMITTAL DUE DATE: Submittals will be received by the Authority until 1:30 p.m.
Orlando local time, on October 28, 2011. Submittals delivered or received after that time and
date will be disqualified.

CODE OF ETHICS: All contractors selected to work with the Authority are required to comply
with the Authority’s Code of Ethics, a copy of which is available on the Authority’s web site at

www.expresswayauthority.com.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT: The Orlando-Orange County Expressway
Authority, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age,
religion and disability. The Authority hereby notifies all firms and individuals that it requires and
encourages equal employment opportunity for minority and women as employees in the
workforce.

MINORITY/WOMEN/DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
PARTICIPATION: The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority hereby notifies all
firms and individuals that it will require affirmative efforts be made to ensure participation of
local minority and women business enterprises on contracts awarded by the Authority.

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Claude Miller
Director of Procurement

NTC-2



1.0
1.1
1.2
13
1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7

1.8

1.9
1.10
L.11
2.0
2.1
22
2.3
24
25
30
31
3.2
33
4.0
4.1
42
5.0
5.1
52
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0
10.0

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

FOR

EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 000841
Table of Con

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

INVITATION

BACKGROUND

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION
CONTRACTING AGENCY

VERBAL INSTRUCTIONS AND ADDENDA
AUTHORIZATIONS AND LICENSES
QUALIFICATIONS FOR SERVICES

1.7.1 GENERAL

1.7.2  QUALIFICATIONS OF PERSONNEL
RESERVATIONS AND RESPONSIVENESS OF PROPOSALS
1.8.1 RESERVATIONS

1.8.2 RESPONSIVENESS OF PROPOSALS
1.8.3 MULTIPLE PROPOSALS

1.84 WAIVERS

1.8.5 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
COST INCURRED IN RESPONDING
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT
CANCELLATION PRIVILEGES

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION ...........coccciinmennenccorerrnsessensessessssssnens

GENERAL

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
TIME AND PLACE OF SUBMITTAL
MODIFICATIONS, RE-SUBMITTAL AND WITHDRAWAL
PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS

PROPOSAL FORMALT ...........coooiemrnerescnnsrensersssnssns

veere. PSR-2

TECHNICAL PROPOSALS
PRESENTING THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL
INTERVIEW

PROPOSAL SCORING .............cccocevuruane.

CRITERIA

SCORING BY THE COMMITTEE
AWARD OF THE CONTRACT ...
PROTEST PROCEDURE
CONTRACT EXECUTION

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT ...........cccooermmirmrnnrrnrrsssesssesssssccnns
CONFLICT/NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT .......

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY ..........coovemrererrsreresrennen
CODE OF ETHICS. .............
EXHIBITS ...................

PSR-1

......................

..................

.......................................................

.........

............................................................................

PSR-12

PSR-13

..PSR-13

PSR-13
PSR-13



PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
CONTRACT NO. 000841

1.0 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)
1.1  INVITATION

The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority (Authority) invites responses to this Request for
Proposals from independent Certified Public Accountant firms to perform annual audit examinations
of the Authority’s financial statements. The full description of the scope of services is attached as
Exhibit “A”, Scope of Services.

For the purpose of this RFP, the term “Proposer” means the prime Proposer acting for itself. The
term “proposal” means the complete response of the Proposer to the request for proposals, including
properly completed forms and supporting documentation.

1.2 BACKGROUND

The Authority is a body politic and corporate and an agency of the State of Florida established
pursuant to Chapter 348, Part V, Florida Statutes, for the purpose of financing, planning, designing,
constructing and operating a limited access expressway road system in Orange County, Florida.

The Governing Board for the Authority is composed of five members. Three members of the Board
are citizens of Orange County appointed by the Governor, the fourth member is the Mayor of Orange
County, Florida, as an ex-officio voting member, and the fifth member is the District Five Secretary
for the Florida Department of Transportation, also as an ex-officio voting member. The Authority is
managed by an Executive Director appointed by the Board who is responsible for the day to day
operations and oversees a staff of approximately 60 full-time employees. Since its establishment, the
Authority has constructed 105 centerline miles of limited access expressways in Orange County,
which currently includes portions of S.R. 528 (Beachline Expressway), S.R. 408 (East-West
Expressway), portions of S.R. 417 (Central Florida GreeneWay), portions of S.R. 429 (Daniel
Webster Western Beltway), and S.R. 414 (John Land Apopka Expressway).

1.3 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION

The project is identified as Authority Contract No. 000841.

14 CONTRACTING AGENCY

The contracting agency is the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority referred to herein as the

“Authority”.

PSR-2



15 VERBAL INSTRUCTIONS AND ADDENDA

All questions relative to interpretation of the proposal documents or the procurement process shall be
addressed in writing as indicated below. At the Authority’s discretion, inquiries received within seven
(7) days of the date set for the receipt of proposals may not be given any consideration. Any
interpretation made to prospective proposers will be expressed in the form of an addendum which, if
issued, will be made available on the Authority’s website for download by registered proposers no later
than five (5) days before the date set for receipt of proposals. Oral answers will not be authoritative.

It will be the responsibility of the prospective proposer prior to submitting proposals to ascertain if any
addenda have been issued, to obtain all such addenda, and to acknowledge receipt of addenda on the
Acknowledgement of Addendum form (page PSR-15). All addenda will be posted on the Authority’s

web site at www.expresswayauthority.com/Corporate/administration/Contracting/Default.aspx .

Questions may be submitted via e-mail at RFP000841 @oocea.com. The Authority prefers questions
be sent via e-mail; however, they can be faxed to the Manager of Procurement at the number
indicated below. The contract number must be referenced in the subject line. All requests or
questions should be clearly marked and must be received no later than 4:00 p.m., Orlando local time,
on October 21, 2011.

Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority
Procurement Department Attn: Robert Johnson, Manager of Procurement
4974 ORL Tower Road, Orlando FL 32807
407-690-5000 Office, 407-690-5032 Fax
RFP000841@oocea.com E-mail

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by a Proposer as a result of any
verbal discussions with an employee of the Authority. Only those communications, which are in
writing from the Authority, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of the
Authority. Also, the Authority will recognize only written communications from Proposers, which
are signed by persons who are authorized to contractually bind the Proposers, as duly authorized
expressions on behalf of the Proposers.

The Authority will make available to all Proposers in receipt of the Request for Proposal, the
Authority’s written responses to a Proposer’s question(s) in the form of an addendum.

1.6 AUTHORIZATIONS AND LICENSES
Proposers who are corporations must be authorized to do business in the State of Florida. Such

authorization and licenses should be obtained by the Proposal due date and time. Professional
must be licensed in the State of Florida.

PSR-3



1.7

1.8

QUALIFICATIONS FOR SERVICES
1.71 GENERAL

The Authority will determine whether the Proposer is qualified to provide the services being
contracted based on the Proposer demonstrating in its proposal satisfactory experience and
capability in the work area. The Proposer shall include the necessary experienced personnel
and facilities to support the activities required by the Contract.

1.7.2 QUALIFICATIONS OF PERSONNEL

Those key individuals who will be directly providing contract services must have
demonstrated specific experience as detailed in the Scope of Services. Individuals whose
qualifications are presented shall be committed to the project for its duration.

RESERVATIONS AND RESPONSIVENESS OF PROPOSALS
1.8.1 RESERVATIONS

The Authority reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals received and reserves
the right to make an award without further discussion of the proposals submitted. Therefore,
the proposals should be submitted initially in the most favorable manner. It is understood
that the proposal will become a part of the Authority’s official file on this matter without
obligation on behalf of the Authority. The contents of the proposals are subject to the Florida
Public Records Act.

1.8.2 RESPONSIVENESS OF PROPOSALS

All proposals shall be in writing. A responsive proposal is one which conforms in all-
material respects to the requirements contained herein. Proposals may be rejected if found to
be irregular or not in conformance with these requirements and instructions. A proposal may
be found to be irregular or non-responsive by reasons including, but not limited to, failure to
use or complete prescribed forms, conditional proposals, incomplete proposals, indefinite or
ambiguous proposals, and improper or undated signatures.

Other conditions which may cause rejection of proposals include: evidence of collusion
among Proposers; lack of experience or expertise to perform the required work; failure to
perform or meet financial obligations on previous contracts; an individual, firm, partnership,
or corporation is on the United States Comptroller General’s List of Parties Excluded from
Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs.

Proposals will be disqualified if delivered or received after the date and time specified as the
due date for submission. Disqualified Proposers will be notified in writing. Although these
proposals will not be considered for evaluation they will be keep on file as disqualified.

PSR-4



1.8.3 MULTIPLE PROPOSALS

Proposals may be rejected if more than one proposal is received from an individual, firm,
partnership, corporation, or combination thereof, (furnished as the prime Proposer) under the
same or different names. Such duplicate interest may cause the rejection of all proposals in
which such Proposer has participated.

1.84 WAIVERS

The Authority may waive minor informalities or irregularities in proposals received where
such is merely a matter of form and not substance, and the correction or waiver of which is
not prejudicial to other Proposers. Minor irregularities are defined as those that will not have
an adverse effect on the Authority’s interest and will not give a Proposer an advantage or
benefit not enjoyed by other Proposers.

1.8.5 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Each individual, partnership, firm, or corporation that is part of the successful Proposer’s
team, either by joint venture or subcontract, will be subject to, and comply with, the
contractual requirements.

1.9  COST INCURRED IN RESPONDING

Neither the Authority nor any other public agency shall be committed to pay any costs incurred by an
individual, firm, partnership, or corporation in the submission of a proposal.

1.10 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT

The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority, in accordance with the Provisions of Title VII of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., the Florida Civil Rights Act of
1992, as amended, § 760.10 et seq., Fla. Stat. (1996), and other federal and state discrimination
statutes, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, age, national origin, religion, and
disability or handicap. The Authority requires and encourages equal employment opportunity for
minority and women as employees in the work force.

111 CANCELLATION PRIVILEGES

The performance by the Authority of any of its obligations under this RFP and subsequent Contract
will be subject to and contingent upon the availability of monies lawfully appropriated for such
purposes. If the Authority deems at any time during the term of the Contract that monies lawfully
applicable to the Contract are unavailable for the remainder of the Contract term, the Authority will
notify the Contractor in writing, whereupon the obligations of the parties herein shall end within
thirty (30) days upon giving of such notice and the Contract shall be considered canceled by mutual
consent. .

PSR-5



2.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
2.1 GENERAL

By submitting a proposal, the Proposer represents that he/she understands and accepts the terms and
conditions to be met and the character, quality, and scope of services to be provided. All proposals
and associated forms shall be signed and dated in ink by a duly authorized representative for the
Proposer.

2.2 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

The original and six (6) copies of the Technical Proposal, and one (1) compact disk with an
electronic version in pdf format with a resolution of 300 dots per inch (dpi), shall be submitted in
a sealed envelope(s), identified as the Technical Proposal, and bearing on the outside the
following:

Proposal For: EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
Contract No.: 000841
Submitted To: ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Submitted By: PROPOSER’S NAME
PROPOSER’S ADDRESS
CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
PROPOSER’S PHONE NUMBER
PROPOSER’S CONTACT NUMBER AND E-MAIL ADDRESS
DATE SUBMITTED

An original and one (1) copy of the Fee Schedule (Exhibit D) shall be submitted in a sealed
envelope, separate from the Technical Proposal. The envelope shall be identified as the Fee Schedule
and shall include the same information on the outside as shown for the Technical Proposal. Fee
Schedules will be opened after evaluation of the Technical Proposals has been completed.

The contents of the Technical Proposals and Fee Schedules will not be disclosed to the public until
after the evaluation and final selection, at which time, under the Florida Public Records Act and the
Florida Sunshine laws, materials submitted by a Proposer and the results of the Authority’s
evaluation will be available for public inspection. Proposers should take note of this as it relates to
any proprietary information that might be included in the proposal package. The Authority assumes
no liability for disclosure or use of data submitted in response to this RFP for any purpose and may
consider that the proposal was not submitted in confidence and, therefore, can be released under the
Florida Sunshine laws and the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 522).

23 TIME AND PLACE OF SUBMITTAL

The original and the required number of copies of the Technical Proposal and Fee Schedule shall
be submitted to:

PSR-6



Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority
4974 ORL Tower Road
Orlando, Florida 32807
Attn: Claude Miller
Director of Procurement

Proposals will be received until 1:30 p.m., Orlando local time, on October 28, 2011. Proposals
delivered or received after that time and date will be marked as disqualified and will be set aside
unopened until after the selection process is complete. Once the selection process has been
completed these will be filed as rejected proposals because of a late submittal.

24 MODIFICATIONS, RE-SUBMITTAL AND WITHDRAWAL

Proposers may modify previously submitted proposals at any time prior to the proposal due date.
Requests for modification of a submitted proposal shall be in writing and shall be signed in the same
manner as the proposal. Upon receipt and acceptance of such a request, the entire proposal will be
returned to the Proposer and not considered unless resubmitted by the due date and time.

2.5 PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS

An Evaluation Committee, hereinafter referred to as the Committee, will be established by the
Authority to review and evaluate each Technical Proposal. The Committee will be comprised of at
least four persons with background, experience, and/or professional credentials in the service area.

Each member of the Committee will receive a copy of each Technical Proposal and will base his/her
evaluation of each proposal on the same criteria in order to assure that value is uniformly established.
The Committee will evaluate each Technical Proposal on its own merit without comparison to other
proposals submitted. The Committee will assign rating factors based upon the evaluation criteria
identified herein.

3.0 PROPOSAL FORMAT
3.1 TECHNICAL PROPOSALS

Proposals shall address each of the sections described below and how the Proposer intends to achieve
the desired performance levels. The required information shall be clear, concise and understandable.
If examples of reports are submitted, the Proposer shall explain the area being reported on and how
the report addresses those issues.

No cost information or prices shall be included in the Technical Proposal. Inclusion of cost

information or prices in the Technical Proposal may be sufficient cause for rejection of the submittal.
The Technical Proposal shall include the following sections:

PSR-7



Executive Summary

The Executive Summary shall be written in non-technical language to summarize the
Proposer’s overall capabilities and approaches for accomplishing the services
specified herein. The Executive Summary shall be limited to no more than three (3)

pages.

The firm’s certification that they are licensed in the State of Florida and its
certification that it meets the appropriate criteria for independence shall be included
under the Executive Summary tab but will not be counted against the three- page
limit.

Approach of Engagement

The Proposer shall demonstrate its understanding of the project objectives and shall
discuss the means by which these objectives will be attained. The Proposer shall
include the following information under this tab:

A description of the Proposer’s approach to this audit engagement.
A tentative schedule for performing the key phases of this engagement.

A description of Proposer’s procedure in monitoring the progress of the audit
and communicating same to the client while the audit is in progress.

4, The Proposer’s specific policies, plans, procedures or techniques used to
develop information for management letters.

5. A description of the nature and extent of information technology audit
techniques typically employed by the Proposer in the examination of client’s
financial statements which have substantial data processing applications and
a description of work to be done. Provide a brief description of the
qualifications of individuals who will be performing procedures outlined
above.

The Proposer shall submit a copy of the report on its most recent external quality
control review with a statement whether that quality control review included a review
of specific govenment engagements. (Does not count against the page limitation for
the proposal.)

The Proposer shall submit information on the results of any federal or state desk
review or field reviews of its audits during the past three (3) years. In addition, the
Proposer shall provide information on the circumstances and status of any
disciplinary action taken or pending against the Proposer during the past three (3)
years with the State of Florida regulatory bodies or professional organizations.

PSR-8



Management of Engagement

The Proposer shall describe its organization and management policies and their
application to ensure accomplishment of the Project requirements. The Proposer shall
provide organizational charts which show the entire proposed organizational
structure. A description of the Proposer’s internal lines of responsibility and
authority, and the interface relationships with the Authority and any sub consultants
shall be shown.

The Proposer shall submit a staffing plan which clearly illustrates the key elements of
the organizational structure proposed to accomplish the services required. Project
management and key staff shall be identified. It is preferred that the staff and office
assigned responsibility for the audit is located in the Orlando Metro Area.

The Proposer shall describe the expected participation and contribution of the
Proposer’s top officials in the proposed activities. The Proposer shall provide a
definition of responsibility and accountability for specific tasks and functions of key
individuals within the Proposer’s organization.

The Proposer shall address its quality control program, namely the policies followed
to assure a complete, accurate and quality service as it relates to the services required.
The program shall specify the method by which project related information is
received and processed by the Proposer.

The Proposer shall describe its professional development program and indicate the
number of days of specialized training in governmental accounting and auditing
received during the last two years by personnel who will be assigned to the audit
engagement.

M/WBE Participation

The Proposer shall provide a policy statement of non-discrimination and equal
employment opportunity and an affirmative action plan within the local office to the
firm. The Proposer shall provide evidence of promoting minorities and women to
manager and partner levels in the local office. The Proposer shall also indicate the
degree to which the firm will subcontract with local minority and women-owned
firms in the performance of the audit and consulting services.

Firm’s Experience on Similar Engagements

The Proposer shall list all government financial statement audits performed in the last
three years by the office that will be assigned responsibility for the audit. Indicate
the scope of work, date, engagement partners, and the name and telephone number of
the principal client contact.

PSR-9



The Proposer shall provide information on the size of the firm, the size of the firm’s
governmental audit staff, the location of the office from which the work on this
engagement is to be performed, the number and classification of the professional staff
to be employed in this engagement on both a full-time and part-time basis. The
information shall include specific details for the office in which the audit will be
conducted. Additionally, the Proposer shall provide a brief job description of each
employee classification set forth above along with experience requirements (if any)
for each classification.

F. Assigned Auditor’s Experience

The Proposer shall furnish resumes of Proposer’s Audit Manager and other key
personnel presently employed by the Proposer who will be assigned to the project.
The Audit Manager shall have a minimum of five (5) years of specific experience in
the services required by the Scope of Services. Proposer’s staff shall be identified and
past experience of each, as it specifically relates to services required, shall be
discussed.

The Proposer shall identify the principal supervisory and management staff, including
engagement partner, manager, other supervisors and specialists, and the auditor-in-
charge of fieldwork, who would be assigned to the engagement and indicate whether
each such person is licensed to practice as a certified public accountant in Florida.
The Proposer shall also provide information on the governmental auditing experience
of each person.

G. Required Attachments to Proposal

Submit with the Technical Proposal the completed Conflict/Non-Conflict of Interest
Statement and Litigation Statement form, the completed Drug-Free Workforce form,
and the completed Code of Ethics form

3.2 PRESENTING THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

All items in the Technical Proposal shall be bound, punched and inserted in a three-ring binder or in
some other manner organized such that portions will not become detached or lost. Tab dividers at
the beginning of each section shall be provided. Duplication or quotation in detail from attached
reference materials or marketing information is not necessary provided that a summary is included in
the technical section and a clear and easy means to locate references to the information is provided.
Font size for the Technical Proposal shall not be less than 10 point. The Proposal shall be limited to
fifteen (15) pages, single-sided, exclusive of those items specifically identified above and the
following:

PSR-10



- Transmittal Letter

- Front and back cover and divider sections
- Required forms to be completed

- Required reports to be submitted

- Key staff resumes

- References/Transactions List

3.3 INTERVIEW

The five (5) firms with the highest point total after evaluation of the first three criteria in 4.2 below
will be shortlisted and requested to sit for an interview with the Committee. The interview will last
approximately 30 minutes. Shortlisted firms who fail to participate in the interview will be
considered non-responsive and eliminated from further consideration by the Committee.

The standing of the shortlisted firms will not be disclosed by the Committee. During the interview,
the Committee will ask questions that will assist the Committee in evaluating the technical capability
of the Proposer and key staff to provide the desired services. Only the Proposer’s Audit Manager and
other key staff assigned to this engagement should be present to answer the Committee’s questions.
No audio/visual presentations will be allowed.

Interviews are tentatively scheduled for December 15, 2011, at the Authority’s office. Proposers will
be notified by the Authority of the time that the Proposer will be required to appear. Proposers who
fail to attend the interview will be considered non-responsive and eliminated from further
consideration by the Committee. The order of the interviews will be determined alphabetically by
company name.

40 PROPOSAL SCORING
41 CRITERIA

Submittals shall demonstrate the firm’s understanding of the required services. The submittal shall
be sufficiently detailed to enable the Committee to ascertain that the firm understands the
requirements and is able to furnish services of the scope and complexity specified. Responses that
are limited to a statement of “will comply” or a similar statement, which does not describe how each
requirement will be met, will receive no technical credit. Responses which are merely a copy of the
stated requirements are not desired and will receive no credit. Discussion of the firm's past
experience that is not germane to the specified services should not be included.

42 SCORING BY THE COMMITTEE

Scoring of the submittals will be as follows:

PSR-11



Approach and Management of Engagement (includes M/WBE participation) 20

Firm’s Experience on Similar Engagements 20
Assigned Auditors’ Experience 30
Interview 10
SUBTOTAL 80

Fee Schedule 20
TOTAL 100

After the points for the firms have been calculated, each Committee member will convert his or her
raw scores into a ranking, The firm with the highest score will be ranked number 1, the second
highest score will be ranked number 2, etc. The rankings of each of the Committee members will be
recorded and the final ranking will be based on a 1 point scale with the lower score being the higher
ranked firm.

50 AWARD OF THE CONTRACT

The Authority intends to award the Contract to the responsible and responsive Proposer whose
proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to the Authority taking into consideration the
criteria stated herein.

51 PROTEST PROCEDURE

Any person who is adversely affected by: (i) the requirements or scope of services contained in this
RFP, (ii) a notice of an intended decision, or (iii) a notice of decision or decisions by the Authority,
and who wants to protest the requirements or scope of services, the intended decision or decisions
must comply with the proper procedures in the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority’s
Procedure for Resolution of Protests, Rule Chapter 3-1. Failure to comply with Rule Chapter 3-1
shall constitute a waiver of any protest proceedings. Rule Chapter 3-1 is available for review upon
request at the Authority's Office, 4974 ORL Tower Road, Orlando, Florida. A protest bond in the
amount of $5,000.00 will be required to protest the RFP package and the requirements of the Scope
of Services. A protest bond in the amount of $5,000.00 will be required to protest a Notice of Intent
to Award or Notice of Intent to Reject.

52 CONTRACT EXECUTION
Following the protest period, the Authority and the successful Proposer will enter into a Contract
establishing the obligations of both parties. The successful Proposer shall execute the Contract

within 14 calendar days and return it to the Authority along with proof of insurance as required in the
Contract.

PSR-12



6.0 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT
The following provisions of Section 287.133 (2)(a), Florida Statues, are applicable to this project:

“A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a
public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public
entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a
public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may
not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a
contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the
threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months
from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.”

7.0 CONFLICT/NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT AND LITIGATION
STATEMENT

The Proposer shall complete and submit with the Technical Proposal the Conflict/Non-Conflict of
Interest Statement and Litigation Statement form included at the end of this section. Failure to
submit the completed form may result in rejection of the Proposal as non-responsive.

8.0 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY

The Proposer shall have a Drug Free Workplace Policy. A copy of the Drug-Free Workplace Form
included at the end of this section shall be completed and submitted with the Technical Proposal.
Failure to submit the completed form may result in rejection of the Proposal as non-responsive.

9.0 CODE OF ETHICS

All firms selected to work with the Authority are required to comply with the Authority’s Code
of Ethics, a copy of which is available on the Authority’s web site at www.oocea.com.

10.0 EXHIBITS
Attached exhibits are:
A. Scope of Services
B. Method of Compensation

C. Contract
D. Fee Schedule

PSR-13



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
CONTRACT NO. 000841

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF STANDARD OF CONDUCT AND
CODE OF ETHICS

If awarded the Contract, the undersigned covenants and agrees that it and its employees shall be
bound by the standards of conduct provided in Florida Statutes 112.313 as it relates to work
performed under the Contract, which standards will by reference be made a part of the Contract
as though set forth in full. The undersigned agrees to incorporate the provisions of this
requirement in any subcontract into which it might enter with reference to the work performed or
services provided.

The undersigned further acknowledges that it has read the Authority’s Code of Ethics and, to the
extent applicable to the undersigned, agrees to abide with such policy.

Company Name

By:

Title:

(Note: Failure to execute and submit this form may be cause for rejection of the submittal as
non-responsive.)

PSR-14



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDUM
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
CONTRACT NO. 000841

I (we) hereby acknowledge receipt of the following Addenda issued during the proposal period
for the project:

Addendum No. Dated Proposer Initial
Addendum No. Dated Proposer Initial
Addendum No. Dated Proposer Initial
Addendum No. Dated Proposer Initial
Addendum No. Dated Proposer Initial

(Note: If addenda are issued, failure by the Proposer to submit this form with the Technical
Proposal may be cause for rejection of the proposal as non-responsive.)

PSR-15



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
CONFLICT/NONCONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

CHECK ONE

To the best of our knowledge, the undersigned firm has no potential conflict of interest due to any other clients,
contracts, or property interest for this project.

OR

The undersigned firm, by attachment to this form, submits information which may be a potential conflict of interest
due to other clients, contracts or property interest for this project.

LITIGATION SUMMARY

PLEASE DISCLOSE AND PROVIDE A SHORT SUMMARY AND DISPOSITION OF ANY CIVIL
LITIGATION IN FLORIDA INVOLVING THE FIRM AS A NAMED PARTY WITHIN THE LAST FIVE
(5) YEARS.

ALSO DISCLOSE ANY ACTIONS AGAINST THE FIRM BY THE FLORIDA BAR, THE DEPARTMENT

OF PROFESSIONAL REGULATION AND/OR ANY OTHER FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL
REGULATORY AGENCY INCLUDING DISPOSITION OF SAME.

CHECK ONE

( J The undersigned firm has had no litigation or any projects in the last five (5) years.

OR

( ] The undersigned firm, BY ATTACHMENT TO THIS FORM, submits a summary and disposition of

individual cases of litigation in Florida during the past five (5) years; and actions by any Federal, State, and
local agency.

COMPANY NAME

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

NAME (PRINT OR TYPE)

TITLE
Failure to check the appropriate blocks above may result in disqualification of your proposal. Likewise, failure to

provide documentation of a possible conflict of interest, or a summary of past litigation, may result in disqualification of
your proposal.

PSR-16



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM

The undersigned, in accordance with Florida Statue 287.087 herby certifies that

does:

Name of Business

1. Publish a statement of notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that
will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.

2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy of maintaining
a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs,
and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commaodities or contractual services that are under bid a
copy of the statement specified in Paragraph 1.

4. In the statement specified in Paragraph 1, notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the
commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employees will abide by the terms of a
statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any
violation of Florida Statute 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a
violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.

5. Impose a sanction of, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any employee who is so convicted.

6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs 1 thru 5.

As the person authorized to sign this statement, I certify that this firm complies with the above requirements,

Proposer’s Signature

Date

PSR-17



1.0

2.0

3.0

EXHIBIT A
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Description

The Auditor shall provide auditing services to the Authority as required by this
Scope of Services including Attachments A, B and C hereto. The Auditor shall
implement an audit plan approved by the Authority and complete its audit field
work to ensure the issuance of the Annual Financial Report by September 30th of
each respective year. Subject to such notification, the Management Letter shall
also be completed by September 30th of each respective year and shall include
management’s responses to the comments. The Management Letter shall be
included in and bound with the Annual Financial Report.

Annual Independent Audit Requirements

The audit shall be a financial audit as defined in Section 11.45(1)(c) of
Florida Statutes comprising the Annual Financial Report including the
general purpose financial statements and certain supplementary financial
data. The Authority also produces a Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR), which is subject to review and includes the audited
financial statements.

Annual financial and compliance audit of all Federal and State grant-in-aid
programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Single Audit
Act of 1984, as amended, if applicable under requirements of OMB
Circular A-133.

Annual compliance attestation of State grants and aids appropriations to
the extent required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Annual Management Letter as defined by Auditor General Rule
10.554(1)(1). The Management Letter must also include a statement in
accordance with Sections 218.39(4), Florida Statutes.

A separate audit and report of the Schedule of Reimbursable costs to the
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT).

Any other required reports under statute of GAAP.

Performance Specifications and Reports

A.

In performing the Annual Independent Audit and services pursuant to the
Contract, the Auditor shall, where applicable, adhere to:

1. “Generally Accepted Auditing Standards” applicable to
governmental units, as promulgated by the AICPA.

2 Governmental Accounting Standards promulgated by the GASB.
GAO standards, regulations and guidelines applicable in the State
of Florida, and will conduct the audit in accordance with these

A-1



requirements existing, or as may be pronounced during the period
or term of this audit engagement.

3. Federal and State statutes, reporting requirements under both the
Single Audit Act of 1984 and OMB Circular A-133.

The audit report shall contain:

Opinion of the Auditor on the general purpose financial statements.
Report on internal control.

Reports on compliance with laws and regulations.

Report on compliance with bond covenants.

An “in relation to” opinion on supplementary schedules.

S th =W s

Any other report required by General Accounting and Auditing
Standards (GAAS).

Review of the system of internal accounting control and internal
administrative control to the extent required by generally accepted
auditing standards and requirements of the Single Audit Act.

Fulfill requirements of Section 10.556 and 10.557 of the Rules of the
Auditor General, including:

1. Preparation of Annual Financial Audit Report.

2. Preparation of Single Audit Report and other necessary Federal
and State Reports, as needed.

A final and complete report of the audit shall be submitted to the members
of the Authority’s Audit Committee no later than September 30% of each
succeeding fiscal year, subject to the event of notification as may be
specified elsewhere. The report shall also be presented to the Authority’s
Govermning Board.

Submission of the previously mentioned Management Letter, which shall
include applicable comments regarding internal control and compliance
matters as well as disclosures required by the Auditor General. The final
Management Letter to the Authority shall include responses to such
comments.

The Auditor shall format, process, and reproduce 30 hard copies of the
Annual Financial Report, 5 hard copies of the Single Audit Report, 5 hard
copies of the Schedule of Reimbursable Costs, as well as provide an
electronic copy, suitable for publication.

The Auditor shall upon reasonable written notice and without charge,
make available its work papers to any Federal or State agency in
accordance with Federal and State Law Regulations and Attachment B
hereto. The Auditor shall cooperate with any successor auditor appointed
by the Authority in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and
professional standards.



4.0

5.0

L

Auditor shall attend all Audit Committee meetings as requested for no
additional fee.

Other Services

A.

Additional auditing services that may be required include the preparation
of special reports for financing purposes, as determined by the Chief
Financial Officer, or litigation support as determined by the Authority’s
General Counsel.

Any other additional audit work is limited to an annual fee cap of no more
than 25% of the annual audit contract. Such work may arise from changes
in GAAP, GAAS, Federal requirements, or client imposed scope changes
and must be approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

For items A and B above, the Authority will request engagement letters as
the need arises.

If any major department activity, or fund presently operated by the
Authority is transferred to another agency or authority, or a new major
activity, department or fund is added to the responsibility of the Authority
(and subject to audit under the terms of the Contract), the annual fee
provided for shall be increased or decreased after re-negotiation for such
change, the same being agreed to in writing, by the Authority and the
Auditor.

The Auditor acknowledges the Authority has and will continue to issue
revenue bonds. As a result of issuance of such bonds, the Authority is
subject to Section 10B (referred to as the “fraud provisions™) of Securities
Act of 1933, Should additional legislation be passed subjecting the
Authority to any other Federal or State securities laws, the Contract may
be renegotiated to address the additional amount of work required by the
Securities Reporting Provisions. The Auditor agrees that should such
legislation be passed, the Auditor will meet all conditions imposed by the
AICPA relative to firms practicing in the SEC Practice Section.

Internal Assistance

A.

The Authority staff and responsible management personnel will be
available during the audit to assist the Auditor by providing information,
documentation and explanations. The Finance Department staff will do
the preparation of trial balances. Any information provided will be in the
format maintained by the Authority. Any additional or reformatted
schedules will be the responsibility of the Auditor.

The Authority will provide the Auditor with reasonable workspace, desks
and chairs. The Auditor will also be provided with access to telephones,
photocopying facilities and FAX machines.



Attachment A
LIMITATIONS OF THE AUDITING PROCESS

The objective of an audit is the expression of our opinion concerning whether the basic
financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
Authority’s audits will include procedures designed to obtain reasonable assurance of
detecting misstatements due to errors or fraud that are material to the financial
statements. Absolute assurance is not attainable because of the nature of audit evidence
and the characteristics of fraud. For example, audits performed in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS”) are based on the concept of selective
testing of the data being examined and are, therefore, subject to the limitation that
material misstatements due to errors or fraud, if they exist, may not be detected. Also, an
audit is not designed to detect matters that are immaterial to the financial statements. In
addition, an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS does not include procedures
specifically designed to detect illegal acts having an indirect effect (e.g., violations of
fraud and abuse statutes that result in fines or penalties being imposed on the Authority)
on the financial statements.

As applicable, in accordance with requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996, OMB Circular A-133 and the Florida Single Audit Act, the Authority’s audits will
include tests of transactions related to major federal and state award programs for
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreements. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance and because the Auditor will not perform a detailed examination of all
transactions, there is a risk that material errors, fraud, other illegal acts, or noncompliance
may exist and not be detected by the Auditor. In addition, an audit is not designed to
detect immaterial errors, fraud, or other illegal acts or illegal acts that do not have a direct
effect on the basic financial statements or to major programs. It should be recognized
that the audits generally provide no assurance that illegal acts will be detected, and only
reasonable assurance that illegal acts having a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts will be detected. However, the Auditor will
inform appropriate Authority representatives with respect to material errors and fraud, or
illegal acts that come to the Auditor’s attention during the course of the audits. The
Auditor will include such matters in the reports as required for a Single Audit.

If, for any reason, the Auditor is unable to complete the audits, or is unable to form or has
not formed an opinion on the basic financial statements, the Auditor may decline to
express an opinion or decline to issue a report as a result of the engagement.

RESPONSIBILITIES AS TO INTERNAL CONTROLS

As a part of the audits, the Auditor will consider the Authority’s internal control
structure, as required by auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards, sufficient to plan the audit and to
determine the nature, timing, and extent of auditing procedures necessary for expressing

A4



our opinion concerning the basic financial statements. The Authority recognizes that the
basic financial statements and the establishment and maintenance of an effective internal
control over financial reporting are the responsibility of management. The Authority also
recognizes that management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Authority
complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities. Appropriate
supervisory review procedures are necessary to provide reasonable assurance that
adopted policies and prescribed procedures are adhered to and to identify errors, fraud, or
illegal acts. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control. As part of
the Auditor’s consideration of the Authority’s internal control structure, however, the
AUDITOR will inform appropriate Authority representatives of reportable conditions and
other matters that come to the Auditor’s attention that represent significant deficiencies in
the design or operation of the internal control structure, if any, as required by OMB
Circular A-133.

As required by OMB Circular A-133, the Auditor will perform tests of controls to
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that the Auditor
considers relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance
requirements, applicable to each major federal award program. However, tests will be
less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and,
accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in the Auditor’s report on internal control
issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133.

The Authority is also responsible for the design and implementation of programs and
controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing the Auditor about all known or
suspected fraud affecting the Authority involving (a) management, (b) employees who
have significant roles in internal control, and (c) others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements. Authority management is also responsible for
informing the Auditor of knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the Authority received in communications from employees, former employees,
regulators, or others.

RESPONSIBILITIES AS TO COMPLIANCE

The Authority’s audits will be conducted in accordance with the standards referred to in
the Contract. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial
statements are free of material misstatement, the Auditor will perform tests of the
Authority’s compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of
contracts and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those
procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and the Auditor will
not express such an opinion in the Auditor’s report on compliance issued pursuant to
Government Auditing Standards.

OMB Circular A-133 requires that the Auditor also plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the auditee has complied with applicable laws and
regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major
programs. The Auditor’s procedures will consist of the applicable procedures described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance
requirements that could have a direct and material effect of each of the Authority’s major
programs. The purpose of those procedures will be to express an opinion on the

A-S



Authority’s compliance with requirements applicable to major programs in the Auditor’s
report on compliance issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133.

REPRESENTATION FROM MANAGEMENT

Management is responsible for the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, for making all financial records and related information available to the
Auditor, and for identifying and ensuring that the Authority complies with the laws and
regulations applicable to its activities. Management is also responsible for adjusting the
financial statements to correct material misstatements. Additionally, as required by OMB
Circular A-133, it is management's responsibility to follow up and take corrective action
on prior audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a
corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings and the corrective
action plan should be made available to the Auditor during the course of the engagement.
Management, at the conclusion of the engagement, will provide to the Auditor a
representation letter that, among other things, addresses these matters and confirms
certain representations made during the audit, including, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, the absence of fraud involving management or those employees who have
significant roles in the Authority’s internal control, or others where it could have a
material effect on the basic financial statements. The representation letter will also affirm
to the Auditor that management believes that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated pertaining to the current year financial statements are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The Auditor will rely on the Authority’s management providing these representations,
both in the planning and performance of the audit, and in considering the fees that the
Auditor will charge to perform the audit.

ACCESS TO WORKING PAPERS

The working papers for the engagement are the property of Auditor and constitute
confidential information. Except as discussed below, any requests for access to the
Auditor’s working papers will be discussed with Authority Management prior to making
them available to requesting parties.

The Auditor, as well as all other major accounting firms, participates in a "peer review"
program, covering audit and accounting practices. This program requires that once every
three years the Auditor is to subject its quality assurance practices to an examination by
another accounting firm. As part of the process, the other firm will review a sample of
the Auditor’s work. It is possible that the work the Auditor performs for the Authority
may be selected by the other firm for their review. If it is, they are bound by professional
standards to keep all information confidential. If the Authority objects to having the
work done by the Auditor subjected to peer review, the Authority is to notify the Auditor
in writing.

A-6



USE OF THIRD PARTY SERVICE PROVIDERS

Auditor may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party
service providers in serving the Authority. Auditor may share confidential information
about the Authority with these service providers, but will remain committed to
maintaining the confidentiality and security of information. Accordingly, the Auditor
maintains internal policies, procedures and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the
Authority's information. In addition, the Auditor will secure confidentiality agreements
with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of the Authority’s information
and will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures
in place to prevent the unauthorized release of confidential information to others. In the
event that the Auditor is unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, the
Authority will be asked to provide its consent prior to the sharing of your confidential
information with the third-part service provider. Furthermore, the Auditor will remain
responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.

A-7



Attachment B

AUDITOR ASSOCIATION WITH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority agrees not to publish the audited financial statements, and the Auditor’s
report thereon, in a misleading manner, and further agrees that the Auditor’s report shall
accompany any publication of said financial statements by the Authority. Provided the
Auditor is not considered associated with an official statement, the financial statements
issued under the Contract may be used for any lawful purpose of the Authority without
the Auditor’s consent. However, should the Auditor become associated with an official
statement, the Auditor is required by auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America to perform certain procedures related to the offering document. These
procedures, if applicable, will be subject to written arrangements and fees under this
contract. If not associated with the official statement, the Auditor will not have
performed, since the date of the Auditor’s report, any procedures on the financial
statements addressed in that report. Further, the Auditor will not have performed any
procedures relating to the official statement for which the Auditor is not associated.

The Auditor will be considered associated with an official statement if (a) the Auditor
assists in preparing financial information included in the official statement, (b) the
Authority requests the Auditor to review a draft of the official statement, (c) the Auditor
provides an original manual signature on the Auditor’s report included in the official
statement, (d) the Auditor is asked to provide a revised Auditor’s report for inclusion in a
specific official statement, (e) the Auditor issues a comfort letter or a letter described in
SAS No. 72, Letters forUnderwriters and Certain Other Requesting Parties, as amended,
or an attestation engagement report in lieu of a comfort or similar letter on information
included in the official statement, (¢) the Auditor provides written agreement for use of
the Auditor’s report in the official statement (consent letter)or (f) the Auditor issues an
attestation report related to the debt offering.



Attachment C
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As part of this Contract, Auditor shall produce the financial statements and note
disclosures that the Authority prepares. Management of the Authority is responsible for
the financial statements and note disclosures. In management’s representation to
Auditor, management will be asked to acknowledge Auditor’s role in this regard, and
management’s review, approval, and responsibility for the financial statements and note
disclosures. Further, management is responsible for designating a qualified management-
level individual to be responsible and accountable for overseeing these services.

End of Scope of Services

A9



1.0

20

3.0

EXHIBIT B
METHOD OF COMPENSATION
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES

PURPOSE

This document describes the limits and method of compensation to be made to the Auditor
for the services set forth in the Scope of Services. The services shall be provided over the
duration of the work specified in the Contract.

COMPENSATION

For the satisfactory completion of the services detailed in the Scope of Services, the
Auditorwill be paid a portion of the lump sum fee shown in the Fee Schedule for the annual
auditing services based on the percentage of completion.

Additional services performed shall be compensated based on the hourly rates contained in
the Fee Schedule, or in a lump sum amount mutually agreed upon. Additional services will
be billed to the Authority separately from its Annual Independent Audit billing.

METHOD OF COMPENSATION

3.1  The Auditor shall prepare and forward invoices to the Authority’s Accounts Payable
Department. The invoice shall include a breakdown of the work performed by the
Auditor to verify the amount being requested for payment.

3.2  The Authority does not guarantee that all of the services described in the Scope of
Services will be assigned during the term of the Contract. Further, the Auditor is
providing these services on a non-exclusive basis. The Authority, at its option, may
elect to have any of the services set forth herein performed by other consultants or
Authority staff.

3.3  Auditor shall receive and accept the compensation and payment provided in its Fee
Schedule and the Contract as full payment, unless otherwise stated, for all labor,
materials, expenses, supplies and incidentals required to be provided by the Auditor
in the Scope of Services.

34  The Auditor shall promptly pay all sub consultants/subcontractors and suppliers their
proportionate share of payments received from the Authority.

3.5 If the Auditor elects to receive direct deposit of payments from the Authority, the
Authority will provide the Auditor with the necessary Automatic Deposit
Authorization Agreement form.

B-1



4.0

5.0

3.6  The Authority reserves the right to withhold payment or payments in whole or in part,
and to continue to withhold any such payments for work not completed, completed
unsatisfactorily, work that is behind schedule or work that is otherwise performed in
an inadequate or untimely fashion as determined by the Authority or it’s designated
representative. Any and all such payments previously withheld shall be released and
paid to Auditor promptly when the work is subsequently satisfactorily performed. If
any defined action, duty or service or part required by the Contract is not performed
by the Auditor, the value of such action, duty or service or part thereof will be
determined by the Authority and deducted from any invoice or monthly billing period
claiming such items for payment. In order to expedite the review, processing, and
delivery of each month’s invoice to the Authority, the Chief Financial Officer, with
the approval of the Auditor, may elect to apply any deducted amounts to the
following month’s invoice total.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Additional services outside the scope of the Contract and the resulting compensation for such
services shall be implemented by a written Supplemental Agreement in accordance with the
Contract. Such work shall not be performed until a Supplemental Agreement has been
executed by the Authority and the Auditor.

PROJECT CLOSEOUT

Final Audit: The Auditor shall permit the Authority, at the Authority’s option, to perform or
have performed, an audit of the records of the Auditor and any or all subcontractors to
support the compensation paid the Auditor. The audit will be performed as soon as practical
after completion and acceptance of the contracted services. In the event funds paid to the
Auditor under the Contract are subsequently determined to have been inadvertently paid by
the Authority because of accounting errors or charges not in conformity with the Contract,
the Auditor agrees that such amounts are due to the Authority upon demand. Final payment
to the Auditor shall be adjusted for audit results.

END OF SECTION

B-2



EXHIBIT C
CONTRACT

This Contract (the “Contract” as defined herein below), is made this ___day of , 2012,
between the ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY, a body politic
and agency of the State of Florida, hereinafter called the AUTHORITY
and , hereinafter the AUDITOR:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY was created by statute and is charged with acquiring,
constructing, operating and maintaining a system of limited access roadways known as the
Orlando-Orange County Expressway System; and,

WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY has been granted the power under Section
348.754(2)(m) of Florida Statutes, “to do all acts and things necessary or convenient for the
conduct of its business and the general welfare of the authority, in order to carry out the powers
granted to it (by state law);” and,

WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY has determined that it is necessary and convenient in the
conduct of its business to retain the services of anauditor to perform external auditing services
and related tasks as may be assigned to the auditor by the AUTHORITY and identified as
Contract No. 000841; and,

WHEREAS, on or about October 4, 2011, the AUTHORITY issued a Request for
Proposals seeking qualified auditors to perform such tasks; and,

WHEREAS, AUDITOR was the successful one of qualified firms that
responded to the Request for Proposals and was ultimately selected; and,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and benefits set forth
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which being
hereby acknowledged by each party to the other, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

The AUDITOR shall, for the consideration herein stated and at its cost and expense, do all the
work and furnish all the materials, equipment, supplies and labor necessary to perform this
Contract in the manner and to the full extent as set forth in the Contract Documents all of which
are hereby adopted and made part of this Contract as completely as if incorporated herein. The
Contract shall be performed and services provided to the satisfaction of the duly authorized
representatives of the AUTHORITY, who shall have at all times full opportunity to evaluate the
services provided under this Contract.

The services to be provided under this Contract include performing external auditing services as
detailed in the Contract Documents and any amendments, supplements, or modifications thereto.
C-1



The AUTHORITY does not guarantee that all of the services described in the Scope of Services
will be assigned during the term of the Contract. Further, the AUDITOR is providing these
services on a non-exclusive basis. The AUTHORITY, at its option, may elect to have any of the
services set forth herein performed by other contractors or AUTHORITY staff.

The Contract Documents, in order of precedence, consist of:

1.1  The Contract, including insurance policies,

1.2 The Scope of Services,

1.3  The Method of Compensation,

1.4  The Technical Proposal submitted by AUDITOR, and
1.5 The Fee Schedule submitted by AUDITOR,

(collectively, the “Contract”).

2. TERM AND NOTICE

The initial term of the Contract will be three (3) years from the date indicated in the Notice to
Proceed from the AUTHORITY. There shall be two (2) renewal options of one (1) year each.
The options to renew are at the sole discretion and election of the AUTHORITY. Renewals will
be based, in part, on a determination by the AUTHORITY that the value and level of service
provided by the AUDITOR are satisfactory and adequate for the AUTHORITY’s needs. If a
renewal option is exercised, the AUTHORITY will provide the AUDITOR with written notice of
its intent at least 150 days prior to the expiration of the initial three-year Contract Term.

The AUTHORITY shall have the right to terminate or suspend the Contract, in whole or in part,
at any time with 30 days’ notice for convenience or 45 days with cure notice for cause for
AUDITOR’s material failure to perform the provisions of the Contract. Under no circumstances
shall a properly noticed termination by the AUTHORITY (with or without cause) constitute a
default by the AUTHORITY. In the event of a termination for convenience or without cause,
AUTHORITY shall notify AUDITOR (in writing) of such action with instructions as to the
effective date of termination or suspension, in accordance with the time frames set forth
hereinabove. AUDITOR will be paid for all work performed prior to termination and any
reasonable, documented, direct, normal, and ordinary termination expenses. AUDITOR will not
be paid for special, indirect, consequential, or undocumented termination expenses. Payment for
work performed will be based on Contract prices, which prices are deemed to include profit and
overhead. No profit or overhead will be allowed for work not performed, regardless of whether
the termination is for cause.

If AUDITOR: (i) fails to perform the Contract terms and conditions; (ii) fails to begin the work
under the Contract within the time specified in the "Notice to Proceed"; (iii) fails to perform the
work with sufficient personnel or with sufficient materials to assure the prompt performance of
the work items covered by the Contract; (iv) fails to comply with the Contract, or (v) performs
unsuitably or unsatisfactorily in the opinion of AUTHORITY reasonably exercised, or for any
other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner, the AUTHORITY

C-2



will give notice in writing to the AUDITOROof such delay, neglect or default. If the Contract is
declared in default, the AUTHORITY may take over the work covered by the Contract.

If the AUDITOR (within the curative period, if any, described in the notice of default) does not
correct the default, AUTHORITY will have the right to remove the work from the AUDITOR
and to declare the Contract in default and terminated.

Upon declaration of default and termination of the Contract, AUTHORITY will have the right to
appropriate or use any or all materials as the AUTHORITY determines, and may retain others for
the completion of the work under the Contract, or may use other methods which in the opinion of
AUTHORITY are required for Contract completion. All costs and charges incurred by
AUTHORITY because of, or related to, the AUDITOR’s default (including the costs of
completing Contract performance) shall be charged against the AUDITOR. If the expense of
Contract completion exceeds the sum which would have been payable under the Contract, the
AUDITOR shall pay the AUTHORITY the amount of the excess. If, after the default notice
curative period has expired, but prior to any action by AUTHORITY to complete the work under
the Contract, AUDITOR demonstrates an intent and ability to cure the default in accordance with
AUTHORITY's requirements, AUTHORITY may, but is not obligated to, permit AUDITOR to
resume work under the Contract. In such circumstances, any costs of AUTHORITY incurred by
the delay (or from any reason attributable to the delay) will be deducted from any monies due or
which may become due AUDITOR under the Contract. Any such costs incurred by
AUTHORITY which exceed the remaining amount due on the Contract shall be reimbursed to
AUTHORITY by AUDITOR. The financial obligations of this paragraph, as well as any other
provision of the Contract which by its nature and context survives the expiration of earlier
termination of the Contract, shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Contract.

AUTHORITY shall have no liability to AUDITOR for expenses or profits related to unfinished
work on a Contract terminated for default.

AUTHORITY reserves the right to terminate or cancel this Contract in the event the AUDITOR
shall be placed in either voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or an assignment is made for the
benefit of creditors. Such termination shall be deemed a termination for default.

3. CONTRACT AMOUNT AND COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES

3.1 The Contract Amount for the Contract term is $

3.2 AUTHORITY agrees to pay AUDITOR for services performed in accordance
with the Method of Compensation.

4. AUDIT AND EXAMINATION OF RECORDS
4.1 Definition of Records;

@) “Contract Records” shall include, but not be limited to, all information,
communications and data, whether in writing or stored on a computer, computer disks,
microfilm, writings, working papers, drafts, computer printouts, field notes, charts or any other

C-3



data compilations, books of account, photographs, videotapes and audiotapes supporting
documents, any other papers or preserved data in whatever form, related to the Contract or the
AUDITOR’s performance of the Contract determined necessary or desirable by the
AUTHORITY for any purpose. Proposal Records shall include, but not be limited to, all
information and data, whether in writing or stored on a computer, writings, working papers,
computer printouts, charts or other data compilations that contain or reflect information, data or
calculations used by AUDITOR in determining labor, unit price, or any other component of a bid
submitted to the AUTHORITY.

(i)  “Proposal Records” shall include, but not be limited to, any material
relating to the determination or application of equipment rates, home and field overhead rates,
related time schedules, labor rates, efficiency or productivity factors, arithmetic extensions,
quotations from subcontractors, or material suppliers, profit contingencies and any manuals
standard in the industry that may be used by AUDITOR in determining a price.

AUTHORITY reserves and is granted the right (at any time and from time to time, for any
reason whatsoever) to review, audit, copy, examine and investigate in any manner, any Contract
Records (as herein defined) or Proposal Records (as hereinafter defined) of the AUDITOR or
any subcontractor. By submitting a response to the Request for Proposal, AUDITOR or any
subcontractor submits to and agree to comply with the provisions of this section.

If the AUTHORITY requests access to or review of any Contract Documents or Proposal
Records and AUDITOR refuses such access or review, AUDITOR shall be in default under its
Contract with AUTHORITY, and such refusal shall, without any other or additional actions or
omissions, constitute grounds for suspension or disqualification of AUDITOR. These provisions
shall not be limited in any manner by the existence of any AUDITOR claims or pending
litigation relating to the Contract. Disqualification or suspension of the AUDITOR for failure to
comply with this section shall also preclude the AUDITOR from acting in the future as a
subcontractor of another AUDITOR doing work for the AUTHORITY during the period of
disqualification or suspension. Disqualification shall mean the AUDITOR is not eligible for and
shall be precluded from doing future work for the AUTHORITY until reinstated by the
AUTHORITY.

Final Audit for Project Closeout: The AUDITOR shall permit the AUTHORITY, at the
AUTHORITY’S option, to perform or have performed, an audit of the records of the AUDITOR
and any or all subcontractors to support the compensation paid the AUDITOR. The audit will be
performed as soon as practical after completion and acceptance of the contracted services. In the
event funds paid to the AUDITOR under the Contract are subsequently determined to have been
inadvertently paid by the AUTHORITY because of accounting errors or charges not in
conformity with the Contract, the AUDITOR agrees that such amounts are due to the
AUTHORITY upon demand. Final payment to the AUDITOR shall be adjusted for audit results.

AUDITOR shall preserve all Proposal Records and Contract Records for the entire term of the
Contract and for a period of five (5) years after the later of: (i) final acceptance of the project by
the AUTHORITY, (ii) until all claims (if any) regarding the Contract are resolved, or (iii)
expiration of the Proposal Records and Contract Records’ status as public records, as and if
applicable, under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

C4



5. MINORITY AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

AUTHORITY has adopted a program to provide opportunities for small business, including
Minority Business Enterprises (“MBEs”) and Women's Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). Under
the AUTHORITY'’S program, AUDITOR is encouraged to grant small businesses the maximum
opportunity to participate in the provision of the Services

6. AUDITOR INSURANCE

AUDITOR shall carry and keep in force during the period of this Contract, the required amount
of coverage as stated below. All insurance must be underwritten by insurers that are qualified to
transact business in the State of Florida and that have been in business and have a record of
successful and continuous operations for at least five (5) years. Each shall carry a rating of "A-"
(excellent) and a financial rating of Class XII, as defined by A.M. Best and Company's Key
Rating Guide and must be approved by the AUTHORITY. AUDITOR shall carry and keep in
force the following insurance coverage, and provide the AUTHORITY with correct certificates
of insurance (ACORD forms) upon Contract execution:

6.1  Commercial General Liability Insurance having a minimum coverage of One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence of bodily injury or property damage and a
minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) annual aggregate for both General and
Products and Completed Operations. Liability insurance shall be current ISO simplified form
including products and completed operations coverage. The contractual liability insurance
coverage shall include coverage for responsibilities and liabilities assumed by AUDITOR under
this Agreement.

6.2  Business Automobile Liability (for bodily injury, death and property damage)
having a minimum coverage of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for each accident:;

63  Workers' Compensation Insurance Coverage, including all coverage required
under the laws of the state of Florida (as amended from time to time hereafter);

6.4  Unemployment Insurance Coverage in amounts and forms required by Florida
law, as it may be amended from time to time hereafter.

Such insurance policies shall be without co-insurance, and shall (a) include the AUTHORITY,
and such other applicable parties the AUTHORITY shall designate, as additional insureds for
commercial general liability and business automobile liability, (b) be primary insurance, (c)
include contractual liability for commercial general liability, (d) provide that the policy may not
be canceled or materially changed without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the
AUTHORITY from the company providing such insurance, and (e) provide that the insurer
waives any right of subrogation against AUTHORITY, to the extent allowed by law and to the
extent the same would not void primary coverage for applicable insurance policies. AUDITOR
shall be responsible for any deductible it may carry. At least fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration of any such policy of insurance required to be carried by AUDITOR hereunder,

C-5



AUDITOR shall deliver insurance certificates to AUTHORITY evidencing a renewal or new
policy to take the place of the one expiring. Procurement of insurance shall not be construed to
limit AUDITOR’s obligations or liabilities under the Contract. The requirement of insurance
shall not be deemed a waiver of sovereign immunity by AUTHORITY.

Any insurance carried by the AUTHORITY in addition to AUDITOR’s policies shall be excess
insurance, not contributory.

If AUDITOR fails to obtain the proper insurance policies or coverages, or fails to provide
AUTHORITY with certificates of same, the AUTHORITY may obtain such polices and
coverages at AUDITOR’s expense and deduct such costs from AUDITOR payments.

7. AUDITOR RESPONSIBILITY

AUDITOR shall comply with, and shall cause its employees, agents, officers and subcontractors
and all other persons for whom AUDITOR may be legally or contractually responsible to comply
with, applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders of public authorities, sound business
practices, including without limitation:

@) those relating to the safety of persons and property and their protection
from damage, injury or loss, and

(ii)  all workplace laws, regulations, and posting requirements, and

(iii)  implementation of a drug-free workplace policy at least of a standard
comparable to, and in compliance with, AUTHORITY’S Drug-Free
Workplace Policy; And

(iv)  compliance with the public records laws of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

8. INDEMNITY

The AUDITOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless AUTHORITY and all of its
respective officers, contractor’s or employees from actual suits, actions, claims, demands, costs
as defined elsewhere herein, expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees as defined elsewhere
herein), judgments, liabilities of any nature whatsoever (collectively, “Claims™) arising out of,
because of, or due to breach of the Contract by the AUDITOR (its subcontractors, officers,
agents or employees) or due to any negligent or intentional act or occurrence of omission or
commission of the AUDITOR (its subcontractors, officers, agents or employees), including
without limitation any misappropriation or violation of third party copyright, trademark, patent,
trade secret, publicity, or other intellectual property rights or other third party rights of any kind
by or arising out of any one or more of the following:

8.1  violation of same by AUDITOR, its subcontractors, officers, agents or employees,

8.2  AUTHORITY’s use or possession of the AUDITOR Property,

C-6



8.3 AUTHORITY’s full exercise of its rights under any license conveyed to it by
AUDITOR,

8.4  AUDITOR's violation of the confidentiality and security requirements associated
with the AUTHORITY Property,

8.5 AUDITOR’s failure to include terms in its subcontracts as required by this
Contract,

8.6 AUDITOR’s failure to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Contract
by its employees, agents, officers, or subcontractors, or

8.7 AUDITOR’s breach of any of the warranties or representations contained in this
Contract.

AUDITOR will not be liable for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property
directly caused or resulting from the sole negligence of the AUTHORITY or any of its officers,
agents or employees. The parties agree that 1% of the total compensation to the AUDITOR for
performance of each task authorized under the Contract is the specific consideration from
AUTHORITY to AUDITOR for AUDITOR's indemnity and the parties further agree that the
1% is included in the amount negotiated for each authorized task.

9. PUBLIC RECORDS

Upon receipt of any request by a member of the public for any documents, papers, letters, or
other material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, made or received by
AUDITOR in conjunction with this Contract (including without limitation AUDITOR Records
and Proposal Records, if and as applicable), AUDITOR shall immediately notify the
AUTHORITY. Thereafter, AUDITOR shall follow AUTHORITY'S instructions with regard to
such request. To the extent that such request seeks non-exempt public records, the
AUTHORITY shall direct AUDITOR to provide such records for inspection and copying
incompliance with Chapter 119. A subsequent refusal or failure by AUDITOR to timely grant
such public access will be grounds for immediate, unilateral cancellation of the Contract by
AUTHORITY.

10. PRESS RELEASES

AUDITOR shall make no statements, press releases or publicity releases concerning the Contract
or its subject matter, or otherwise disclose or permit to be disclosed any of the data or other
information obtained or furnished under the Contract, or any particulars thereof, including
without limitation AUTHORITY Property, without first notifying AUTHORITY and securing its
consent in writing.

C-7



11. PERMITS, LICENSES, ETC.

Throughout the Term of the Contract, the AUDITOR shall procure and maintain, at its sole
expense, all permits and licenses that may be required in connection with the performance of
Services by AUDITOR,; shall pay all charges, fees, royalties, and taxes; and shall give all notices
necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the Services. Copies of required
permits and licenses shall be furnished to AUTHORITY upon request.

12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

AUDITOR warrants that it has not employed or retained any entity or person, other than a bona
fide employee working solely for the AUDITOR, to solicit or secure this Contract, and that
AUDITOR has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm
any fee, commission, percentage, gift or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting
from the award or making of this Contract. It is understood and agreed that the term “fee” shall
also include brokerage fee, however denoted.

AUDITOR acknowledges that AUTHORITY officials and employees are prohibited from
soliciting and accepting funds or gifts from any person who has, maintains, or seeks business
relations with the AUTHORITY in accordance with the AUTHORITY’s Ethics Policy.
AUDITOR acknowledges that it has read the Ethics Policy and, to the extent applicable,
AUDITOR will comply with the aforesaid Ethics Policy in connection with performance of the
Contract.

In the performance of the Contract, AUDITOR shall comply with all applicable local, state, and
federal laws and regulations and obtain all permits necessary to provide the Contract services.

AUDITOR covenants and agrees that it and its employees, officers, agents, and subcontractors
shall be bound by the standards of conduct provided in Florida Statutes 112.313 as it relates to
work performed under this Contract, which standards will be reference be made a part of this
Contract as though set forth in full.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION

AUDITOR, its employees, officers, agents, and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the
grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or other protected class, in the performance
of work or selection of personnel under this Contract.

14. SUBLETTING AND ASSIGNMENT

AUTHORITY has selected AUDITOR to perform the Services based upon characteristics and
qualifications of AUDITOR and its employees. Therefore, AUDITOR shall not sublet, sell,
transfer, assign, delegate, subcontract, or otherwise dispose of this Contract or any portion
thereof, or of the AUDITOR s right, title, or interest therein without the written consent of the
AUTHORITY, which may be withheld in the AUTHORITY’S sole and absolute discretion. Any
attempt by AUDITOR to dispose of this Contract as described above, in part or in whole, without

C-8



AUTHORITY’S written consent shall be null and void and shall, at AUTHORITY's option,
constitute a default under the Contract.

If, during the term of the Contract, AUDITOR desires to subcontract any portion(s) of the work
to a subcontractor that was not disclosed by the AUDITOR to the AUTHORITY at the time that
the Contract was originally awarded, and such subcontract would, standing alone or aggregated
with prior subcontracts awarded to the proposed subcontractor, equal or exceed twenty five
thousand dollars ($25,000.00), the AUDITOR shall first submit a request to the AUTHORITYs
Director of Procurement for authorization to enter into such subcontract. Except in the case of
an emergency, as determined by the Executive Director or his/her designee, no such subcontract
shall be executed by the AUDITOR until it has been approved by the AUTHORITY Board. In
the event of a designated emergency, the AUDITOR may enter into such a subcontract with the
prior written approval of the Executive Director or his/her designee, but such subcontract shall
contain a provision that provides that it shall be automatically terminated if not approved by the
AUTHORITY Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting.

15. DISPUTES

All services shall be performed by the AUDITOR to the reasonable satisfaction of the
AUTHORITY’s Executive Director (or his delegate), who shall decide all questions, difficulties
and disputes of any nature whatsoever that may arise under or by reason of this Contract, the
prosecution and fulfillment of the services described and the character, quality, amount and value
thereof, The Executive Director’s decision upon all claims, questions and disputes shall be final
agency action. Adjustments of compensation and Contract time, because of any major changes
in the work that may become necessary or desirable as the work progresses shall be left to the
absolute discretion of the Executive Director (and the AUTHORITY Board if amendments are
required) and supplemental agreement(s) of such nature as required may be entered into by the
parties in accordance herewith.

16. PREVAILING PARTY ATTORNEY'S FEES

If any contested claim arises hereunder or relating to the Contract (or AUDITOR’s work
hereunder), and either party engages legal counsel, the prevailing party in such dispute, as
“prevailing party” is hereinafter defined, shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees
and costs as defined herein, from the non-prevailing party.

In order for AUDITOR 'to be the prevailing party, AUDITOR must receive an adjusted judgment
or adjusted award equal to at least eighty percent (80%) of its contested claims filed with
AUTHORITY, failing which AUTHORITY will be deemed the prevailing party for purposes of
this Contract.

Should this section be judged void, unenforceable or illegal, in whole or in substantial part, by a
court of competent jurisdiction, this section shall be void in its entirety and each party shall bear
its own attorneys’ fees and costs.



17. OTHER SEVERABILITY

If any section of this Contract, other than the immediately preceding Prevailing Party Attorneys’
Fees section, be judged void, unenforceable or illegal, then the illegal provision shall be, if at all
possible, interpreted or re-drafted into a valid, enforceable, legal provision as close to the parties’
original intention, and the remaining portions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect
and shall be enforced and interpreted as closely as possible to the parties’ intention for the whole
of the Contract.

18. GOVERNING LAW

This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Florida. Venue
of any legal or administrative proceedings arising out of this Contract shall be exclusively in
Orange County, Florida.

In consideration of the foregoing premises, AUTHORITY agrees to pay AUDITOR for work
performed and materials furnished at the prices submitted with the Proposal.

19. RELATIONSHIPS

AUDITOR acknowledges that no employment relationship exists between AUTHORTIY and
AUDITOR or AUDITOR’s employees. AUDITOR shall be responsible for all direction and
control of its employees and payment of all wages and salaries and other amounts due its
employees. AUDITOR shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such
employees, including without limitation social security tax and income tax withholding,
unemployment compensation, workers compensation, and employment benefits.

AUDITOR shall conduct no act or omission that would lead AUDITOR’s employees or any
legal tribunal or regulatory agency to believe or conclude that AUDITOR’s employees would be
employees of the AUTHORITY.

Any approval by AUTHORITY of a subcontract or other matter herein requiring AUTHORITY
approval for its occurrence shall not be deemed a warranty or endorsement of any kind by
AUTHORITY of such subcontract, subcontractor, or matter.

20. INTERPRETATION

For purposes of this Contract, the singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include
the singular, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Except for reference to women’s
business enterprises and matters relating thereto, reference to one gender shall include all
genders. Reference to statutes or regulations include all statutory or regulatory provisions
consolidating, amending, or replacing the stated statute or regulation. Words not otherwise
defined and that have well-known technical, industry, or legal meanings, are used in accordance
with such recognized meanings, in the order stated. References to persons include their
respective permitted successors and assigns and, in the case of governmental persons, persons
succeeding to their respective functions and capacities. If AUDITOR discovers any material

C-10



discrepancy, deficiency, or ambiguity in this Contract, or is otherwise in doubt as to the meaning
of any provision of the Contract, AUDITOR may immediately notify AUTHORITY and request
clarification of AUTHORITY’s interpretation of the Contract. The Contract Documents,
together with and including all exhibits, comprise the entire agreement of the parties and
supersedes and nullifies all prior and contemporaneous negotiations, representations,
understandings, and agreements, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

21, WAGE RATES AND TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATIONS CERTIFICATE

The AUDITOR hereby certifies, covenants and warrants that wage rates and other factual unit
costs as shown in attached documentation supporting the compensation are accurate, complete
and current as of the date of this Contract. It is further agreed that said price shall be adjusted to
exclude any significant sums where the AUTHORITY shall determine the price was increased
due to inaccurate, incomplete or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs. All such
adjustments shall be made within one year following the date of final billing or acceptance of the
work by the AUTHORITY, whichever is later.

22. SURVIVAL OF EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

Any clause, sentence, paragraph, or section providing for, discussing, or relating to any of the
following shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Contract:

22.1 Trademarks, service marks, patents, trade secrets, copyrights, publicity, or other
intellectual property rights, and terms relating to the ownership, security, protection, or
confidentiality thereof; and

22.2 Payment to AUDITOR for satisfactory work performed or for termination
expenses, if applicable; and

22.3 Prohibition on non-competition agreements of AUDITOR's employees with
respect to any successor of AUDITOR; and

22.4 Obligations upon expiration or termination of the Contract; and

22.5 Any other term or terms of this Contract which by their nature or context
necessarily survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Contract for their fulfillment.

23. OBLIGATIONS UPON EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

23.1 Immediately upon expiration or termination of this ContractAUDITOR shall
submit to AUTHORITY, upon request, a report containing the last known contact information
for each subcontractor or employee of AUDITOR who performed work under the Contract; and

23.2 AUDITOR shall initiate settlement of all outstanding liabilities and claims, if any,
arising out of the Contract and any subcontracts or vending agreements to be canceled. All
settlements shall be subject to the approval of AUTHORITY.

C-11



24. NOTICE TO THE PARTIES

All notices to be given by the parties hereto shall be in writing and served by United Statesmail,
postage prepaid, and registered as follows:

Authority: Orlando-OrangeCounty Expressway Authority
4974 ORL Tower Road
Orlando, Florida32807
ATTN: Chief Financial Officer

Auditor:

C-12



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the authorized signatures named below have executed this Contract
on behalf of the parties as of the day and year first above written. This Contract was awarded by
the Authority’s Board of Directors at its meeting on , 2012.

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTYEXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

By:

Director of Procurement

Print Name:

Date:

AUDITOR

Title

ATTEST: (Seal)

DATE:

Approved as to form and execution, only.

General Counsel for the AUTHORITY

C-13



EXHIBIT“D”
FEE PROPOSAL

EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES
CONTRACT NO. 000841

In a separate envelope, provide the firm’s proposed Fee Proposal Schedule of compensation to
complete the audit and prepare the report for each year of the three-year term and the renewal
periods. Proposer shall also insert hourly rates for each classification shown (or Proposer’s
equivalent classification) for each year of the three-year term and the renewal periods. All fees
are subject to negotiation.

Attach this sheet with original signatures to the Fee Schedule Form. The original and one (1)
copy of the Fee Schedule shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, separate from the Technical
Proposal. The envelope shall be identified as the Fee Schedule and shall include the same
information on the outside as shown for the Technical Proposal.

PROPOSER:

Name of Firm

By:

Print Name

Signature:

Title:

Witness:

Witness:




ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES

FEE SCHEDULE FORM
Option Option
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
A.
Annual Audit and

Report

B.
Hourly Fee
Schedule

Partner/Shareholder

Senior Manager

Supervisor

Senior

Staff

Administrative

Computer Audit
Specialist

- =TT rar
BI‘ BT

D-2




Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority
4974 ORL Tower Road, Orlando FL 32807
(407) 690-5000 Fax: (407) 690-5032

\

EXPRESSWAY
AUTHORITY

TO: All Potential Bidders of Record
FROM Claude Miller, Director of Procurement

DATE: October 25, 2011
SUBJECT: External Auditing Services, Contract No. 000841, Addendum
No. 1

This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents and modifies the original
bidding documents dated September 2011, as noted below. Acknowledge receipt of this
Addendum in the space provided on the Proposal form. Failure to do so may subject the
bidder to disqualification. This Addendum consists of 6 pages and the following
attachments: Current External Auditing Services Fee Schedule; Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards Year Ended June 30, 2011; Schedule of Reimbursable Costs Year
Ended June 30, 2011; Independent Auditors’ Report

CHANGE TO CONTRACT

1. DELETE Section 8, INDEMNITY, in its entirety and replace with the following:
“8. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION OF AUTHORITY:
(a) INDEMNIFICATION

The AUDITOR shall be fully liable for the actions of its agents, employees,
partners, or subcontractors and shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the Authority, and their officers, agents, and employees, from suits, actions,
damages, and costs of every name and description, including reasonable attorneys'
fees, arising from or relating to personal injury and damage to real or personal
tangible property and alleged to be caused in whole or in part by AUDITOR, its
agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors, provided, however, that the
AUDITOR shall not indemnify for that portion of any loss or damages proximately
caused by the negligent act or omission of the Authority.

Further, the AUDITOR shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the
Authority from any suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name and
description, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising from or relating to
violation or infringement of a trademark, copyright, patent, trade secret or
intellectual property right, provided, however, that the foregoing obligation shall
not apply to a misuse or modification of AUDITOR 's products or an operation or

Addendum No. 1, Contract 000841 October 25, 2011
1



use of AUDITOR 's products in a manner not contemplated by the Agreement. If
any product is the subject of an infringement suit, or in the AUDITOR 's opinion is
likely to become the subject of such a suit, the AUDITOR may at its sole expense
procure for the Authority the right to continue using the product or to modify it to
become non-infringing. If the AUDITOR is not reasonably able to modify or
otherwise secure the AUDITOR the right to continue using the product, the
AUDITOR shall remove the product and refund the Authority the amounts paid in
excess of a reasonable rental for past use. The Authority shall not be liable for any
royalties.

The AUDITOR 's obligations under the preceding two paragraphs with respect to
any legal action are contingent upon the Authority giving the AUDITOR (1)
written notice of any action or threatened action, (2) the opportunity to take over
and settle or defend any such action at AUDITOR 's sole expense. The AUDITOR
shall not be liable for any cost, expense, or compromise insured or made by the
Authority in any legal action without the AUDITOR's prior written consent, which
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

(b) LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:

For all claims against the AUDITOR under this Agreement, and regardless of the
basis on which the claim is made, the AUDITOR's liability under this Agreement
as amended for direct damages shall be limited to the greater of $100,000, the
dollar amount of this Agreement as amended, or two times the charges rendered
by the AUDITOR under this Agreement as amended. This limitation shall not
apply to claims arising under the Indemnity paragraph contained in this
Agreement.

Unless otherwise specifically enumerated in the Agreement, no party shall be
liable to another for special, indirect, punitive, or consequential damages,
including lost data or records even if the party has been advised that such
damages are possible. No party shall be liable for lost profits, lost revenue, or lost
institutional operating savings. The Authority may, in addition to other remedies
available to them at law or equity and upon notice to the AUDITOR, retain such
monies from amounts due AUDITOR as may be necessary to satisfy any claim
for damages, penalties, costs and the like asserted by or against them. The
Authority may set off any liability or other obligation of the AUDITOR or its
affiliates to the Authority against any payments due the AUDITOR under any
contract with the Authority.”

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS

2; The following questions were received from registered firms of record. The
Authority’s response follows each question.
Q001: How many years has your current audit firm served your
organization?
R: Since March 1, 2002
Addendum No. 1, Contract 000841 October 25, 2011



Q002: What were the fees paid in the prior contract in total and by year?

R: CY2007 - $76,666  CY2008 - $§79,000  CY2009 - $84,000
CY2010 - $88,810 CY2011 - $72,973

Q003: What was the fee quoted in the prior proposal from the current
auditors?

R: See Attachment “A”

Q004: What IT systems and software is currently being used by the
OOCEA?

R: Our ERP is Eden which is provided by Tyler Technologies. An interface
was written in-house to provide data from our toll collection system to
EDEN. EDEN uses SQL Server database. The core toll collection
transaction processing system is called ARCS. It is proprietary software
provided by TransCore. ARCS runs at the lane, plaza and host levels and
handles vehicle transaction processing and electronic toll collection. Our
Service Center and Plaza user applications were written in-house. They
use a .Net framework and Windows Forms. We have an Oracle database
which stores both toll collection data and service center transactions. Our
Violation Enforcement System was written in-house with the exception of
an LPR solution provided by TransCore. The in-house application uses an
Oracle database and was written in .Net.

QO005: Can you provide us with a copy of the proposal submitted by CBH for
the last contract period? If yes, and there are fees, please advise what
the fees are and the procedure we need to follow to obtain a copy of
this document.

R: Copy of the proposal submitted may be obtained through public records
request by contacting the Authority’s Record Custodian at 407-690-5000.
The cost will be $1.00 plus postage.

Q006: The audited financials for the year ended June 30, 2011 state in the
Management Letter that audit was conducted in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and that auditor issued Report on Compliance
with Requirements that could have a Direct and Material Effect on
the Major Programs. None of the Single Audit reports are included
with these audited financials. Are these reports and Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards available for review?

R: Yes. See Attachment “B”

QO007: Exhibit A indicates that the annual audit requirements include a
separate audit and report of the Schedule of Reimbursable costs to
FDOT. Is this separate audit available for review?

Addendum No. 1, Contract 000841 October 25,2011
3



R: Yes. See Attachment “C”

Q008: What month was interim testing of internal controls performed in
prior years?

R: Interim testing of internal controls has been performed in April in prior
years.

QO009: Please confirm that two audit opinions are requested, one covering the
annual financial report and a second audit opinion covering the CAFR

R: The opinion letter for the CAFR is changed slightly from the opinion letter
from the financials. Please see Attachment “D”.

Q010: Can we obtain a copy of the separate audit opinion and report of the
Schedule of Reimbursable costs to the FDOT?

R: Please see response to Question 7 above.

QO011: Is a Federal and State Single Audit expected to be required for June
30, 2012 and if so how many major programs are expected Can we
obtain a copy of the prior year Federal and State Single audit report
and SEFA? We could not locate these reports on the website or
included with the CAFR.

R: Yes, a Federal and State Single Audit will be required for June 30, 2012.
As of now we only have one major program that needs to be reported.
Please see response to Question 6 for a copy of the prior year report.

QO012: When is the interim audit fieldwork normally performed? When is
the final closed year end trial balance available for year-end fieldwork
to begin? When are the draft financial statements prepared by
management and completed and available?

R: Please see response to Question 8 pertaining to interim fieldwork. The
final closed year end trial balance is usually available the first week of
August and the draft financial statements are usually completed the second
week in September.

QO013: Can we obtain a copy of the contract executed with the prior audit
firm?

R: A copy of the executed contract may be obtained through public records
request by contacting the Authority’s Record Custodian at 407-690-5000.

Q014: The AICPA advises that the indemnification of a client would impair
the auditors independence under interpretation 101-1.A and
interpretation 101-1.C. Therefore, only to the extent caused by

Addendum No. 1, Contract 000841 October 25,2011
4



Crowe’s gross negligence or intentional misconduct, would we be
agree to indemnify and hold the Authority harmless for claims,
actions, damages, and liabilities asserted by you or third parties
against you and which result from the services performed by Crowe
pursuant to this engagement. Will the Authority accept changes to
section 8 of the proposed contract document in order to ensure
conformity with professional standards? In addition, will the
Authority give consideration to adding the following language to
section 8 of the contract document: Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in the Agreement, no provision in this Agreement shall be
construed to require performance or require Crowe to assume any
obligation inconsistent with any applicable professional rules or
standards, and no provision shall be given effect if such effect would
require performance or require Crowe to assume any obligation
inconsistent with any applicable professional rules or standards. In
addition, the management of the Authority is responsible for the
financial statements, including selecting and applying the accounting
policies. Management is also responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control that will, among other things,
permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

R: No, see Item 1 of this Addendum for the new indemnification provision.

Q015: Does the Authority utilize a third party service provider to collect
electronic tolls or other tolls and if so is an SSAE 16 report provided?

R: A third party service provider is utilized to collect cash tolls in the lane and
to run the E-PASS Service Center. We do not receive SSAE 16 reports
from either company.

Q016: What general ledger accounting software does the Authority utilize
and is there any software conversions planned for the next three
years?

R: The Authority uses Eden, a Tyler Technologies ERP Solution. There are
no current plans to change software.

QO017: Is there a required percentage for M/WBE participation in this
contract? What was the percentage of participation in the prior year
Contract by a M/WBE firm?

R: There is no required percentage, however M/WBE participation is
encouraged and will be evaluated in accordance with section 4.2 of the
proposal submittal requirements. The M/WBE participation for the
existing contract is currently averaging 10% per audit year.

Addendum No. 1, Contract 000841 October 25, 2011



QO018: Section 3.2, Presenting the Technical Proposal, states the following

regarding number of pages: The Proposal shall be limited to fifteen
(15) pages, single-sided, exclusive of those items specifically identified
above and the following:

- Transmittal Letter

- Front and back cover and divider sections

- Required forms to be completed

- Required reports to be submitted

- Key staff resumes

- References/Transactions List

Is 15 pages the page limit for the entire proposal?
R: Yes, with the exception of those items listed above and the tab dividers.

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1

Addendum No. 1, Contract 000841 October 25, 2011



ATTACHMENT A

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES

FEE PROPOSAL FORM

Option Option
Yearl Year 2 Year 3 Year4 Year 5

Al

Annual Auditand | 74 go0 | 79 000 | B4 000 89,000 | 94,000
Report

—r

B

Hourly Fee

Schedule

Pariner/Shareholder 240 250 260 270 280
Senzor Manager 190 198 207 215 223
Supervisor 160 167 174 181 188
Semor 120 125 130 136 142
Staff 95 99 103 108 113
Admmstrative 62 65 68 71 74

Computer Andit 180 187 195 203 210
Specialist

2%



Attachment "B"

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards

Year Ended
June 30, 2011



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Contents

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards___..__ o 1-2
Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements that could have

a Direct and Material Effect on the Major Program and on Internal Control over

Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-138 e 3-4
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWardS 5
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards . . 6

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Federal Awards Y A -




CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the
Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority:

We have audited the financial statements of the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority (the
“Authority”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 23, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter
dated September 23, 2011.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Audit Committee,
Authority members, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

0[,_7. BRask & HQ, L.t

Orlando, Florida
September 23, 2011



CHERRY
BEKAERT&

CERTIFIED §
ALCOLUNTA

s
CONSULTANT S

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements that could have a
Direct and Material Effect on the Major Program and on Internal Control
over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Cireular A-133

To the Members of the
Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority (the “Authority”) with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the major
federal awards program for the year ended June 30, 2011. The Authority’s major federal awards
program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to the major federal awards program is the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal awards program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal awards program for
the year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.



Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011,
and have issued our report thereon dated September 23, 2011. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming our opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Audit Committee,

Authority members, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

G;Zn«}, BAReuX 2 B, L.

Orlando, Florida
September 23, 2011



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Identification CFDA # Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Florida Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction (contract #: AP493) 20.205 $ 1,402,734
Highway Planning and Construction (contract #: ANP83) 20.205 550,987
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,953,721

See note to Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) represents the amount expended
from Federal Programs during the 2011 fiscal year, as determined based on the accrual basis of
accounting. The amount reported on the Schedule has been reconciled to and is in material
agreement with the amount recorded in the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority’s
accounting records from which the basic financial statements have been reported.



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Part I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statement Section

Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Type of auditors' report on compliance for

maijor federal program:

Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance with

Circular A-133

Identification of major federal program:

Name of Program or Cluster

Department of Transportation - Highway
Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs:

Federal

Unqualified
yes X no
yes X none reported
yes X no
yes X no
yes X none reported

Unqualified
yes X no

CFDA Number
20.205
$ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee for federal purposes? X yes no



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Part II - Schedule of Finaneial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations
of provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements that
are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

There were no financial statement findings required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

Part III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and material instances of
noncompliance, including questioned costs, as well as any material abuse findings, related to the
audit of major federal programs, as required to be reported by Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-

133.

There were no findings required to be reported by Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.



Attachment "C"

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Schedule of
Reimbursable Costs

Year Ended
June 30, 2011



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Independent Auditors’ Report

Contents

Schedule of Reimbursable Costs



CHERRY
ERT&

CERTRARL
ACCOUNTY
CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of
Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority:

We have audited the accompanying “Schedule of Reimbursable Costs” of the Orlando-Orange County
Expressway Authority (the “Schedule”) for the year ended June 30, 2011. The Schedule is the
responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Schedule based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Schedule is free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Schedule. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Schedule. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying Schedule was prepared for the purpose of complying with the requirements of the
Lease-purchase Agreement, as described in Note 1, and is not intended to present the results of
operations of the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority.

In our opinion, the Schedule referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the actual and
allowable costs of the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority for the year ended June 30,
2011 pursuant to the Lease-purchase Agreement as referred to in Note 1, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority Members, management, and

the Florida Department of Transportation and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

QAV.-«;,. 5,2“‘1-4/%22..&) Lt

Orlando, Florida
September 23, 2011



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Sehedule of Reimbursable Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Amount
Invoiced Net of
FDOT Required
Actual Allowable Adjustments Adjustment

Operations:

Conway Main $ 2311691 3 2,311,691 § 2281685 § 30,006

Pine Hills Plaza 1,562,450 1,562,450 1,699,980 (37,530)

Airport Plaza 1,712,235 1,712,235 1,764,599 (52,364)
Total Operations $ 5,586,376 $ 5586376 $ 5646264 $ (59,888)

See notes to Schedule of Reimbursable Costs.



ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
Notes to Schedule of Reimbursable Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Reporting entity

The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority (the “Authority”) is an agency of the State of
Florida and was created in 1963 by Chapter 348 of the Florida Statutes for the purpose of
construction and operation of an expressway road system (the “System”) in Orange County and to
lease such System to the Florida Department of Transportation (the “FDOT"). The Authority is
composed of five members, three of whom are appointed by the Governor, the Chairman of the Board
of County Commissioners of Orange County, Florida, ex-officio, and the District Secretary of the
FDOT. The Authority is authorized to issue revenue bonds to finance portions of the System and to
execute the refunding of existing revenue bonds.

Under the requirements of the Lease-purchase Agreement between the Authority and the FDOT
dated December 23, 1985, as amended and supplemented (the “Lease-purchase Agreement’), the
Authority is reimbursed for the operation costs of the Beachline Expressway, the East-West
Expressway, and the Airport Plaza. The accompanying Schedule of Reimbursable Costs (the
“Schedule”) includes the actual and allowable costs incurred by the Authority for these facilities. The
differences between allowable costs and related amounts invoiced to the FDOT are presented as
required adjustments.

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

The Authority prepares the Schedule on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, expenses are
recorded when incurred.

The Schedule covers only the costs described in the Lease-purchase Agreement and is not intended
to present the results of operations of the Authority.

Note 3 - Contingency

The amounts included in the Schedule are subject to audit and adjustment by the FDOT. If any
expenses are disallowed by the FDOT as a result of such an audit, any claim for reimbursement to the
FDOT would become a liability of the Authority. In the opinion of management, all expenses are in
compliance with the terms of the Lease-purchase Agreement.



Attachment "D"

CHERRY
BEICAERT&.
HOLL

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the
Orlando-Orange County E xpressway Authority:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Orlando-Orange County
Expressway Authority (the “Authority”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicabte to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, in 2010.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 4,
2010 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
intermal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Gove rnment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing

the results of our audit.



The Management's Discussion and Analysis and Trend Data on infrastructure Condition
information on pages 3 through 10 and page 46, respectively, are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied limited procedures, which consist principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of
the Authority taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedule on page 47 is
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. This schedule is the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Such schedule
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements
for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material
respects when considered in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

@Z,«EL' BoRouk & HD, L.t A

Orlando, Florida
October 4, 2010



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the
Orlando-Orange County E xpressway Authority:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Orlando-Orange County
Expressway Authority (the "Authority”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, in 2010.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 4,
2010 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Gove rnment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.



The Management's Discussion and Analysis and Trend Data on Infrastructure Condition information
on pages B-2 through B-7 and page B-37, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. We have applied limited procedures, which consist principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the infor mation and express no opinion on it.

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of the
Authority taken as a whole. The introductory section, calculation of composite debt service ratio on
page B-38 and the statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for the purpose
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The calculation of
composite debt service ratio has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in
all material respects when considered in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

QZ,“}' 6’2“‘*1-4’%22"&1 L.

Orlando, Florida
October 4, 2010



—

FY 2017 Internal Audit Plan Dashboard

As of September 22, 2016

Internal Audit Plan

Annual Audits

1 Internal Audit Plan and Risk Assessment E o—

2 Board and Audit Committee Meetings ;;;;;}%jﬁ : »

3. Prior Audit Recommendations: Semi-Annual Follow-Up H : @o—

4 Procurement & Contract Billing Audits N SIS ILO vy

5.  DHSMV Data Security Assessment ) o CIZII 7 TIIFIIR:

Cyclical Audits i E

6.  Purchasing Spend Data Audit o—

7. Accounting System and SOD Review i : o—

8. Human Resources Process Review i : o—

9. Business Continuity Management Review E :@—>

10. Information Security Risk Assessment — Phase | i ; o—
As Needed Audits } i

11.  Public Records Review I/W

12. Change Management Review — Tolling System Replacement i i o—

13.  Customer Service Center Performance Assessment i i o—

14.  Call Center Staffing Model Development /}//////W///?

15.  Vendor Security Review m%%;

16.  Discount / Rebate Program Audit O e —

PCl| Assessment

17.  PCI Assessment with Report on Compliance

v

1
1
1
[}
]
i
I
I
i
I
i
[}

&—=o Plan Complete 7~ In-Process t t
Central Florida Expressway Authority ® P 7 pro IVI I



V. INTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS

B. Procurement and Contract Billing Audits

Backup will be passed out in meeting.



Executive Summary

Recommendations Summary
Summary of Past Due Management Action Plans

Appendix A - Recommendations Detail
2010 Contracts Audit
2013 Toll Revenue Audit
2014 Maintenance & Safety Plan Audit
2015 Intelligent Transportation Security (ITS)

Systems Security Review
2015 Back Office Customer Call Center Review

2015 COSO Framework Governance Review

2015 Ethics Policy Compliance Review

2016 Contracts Audit . s
Y s sl Central Florida Expressway Authority
2016 ROW Legal Counsel Procurement & Invoice

Audit

2016 Toll Revenue Audit

Prior Audit Recommendations Follow-Up
August 31, 2016

2016 Protiviti Inc. All Rights Reserved. This document has been prepared for use by CFX’s management, audit committee and board of directors.
This report provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time. Future events and changes may significantly
and adversely impact these risks and controls in ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate.

t L] é t [ ]
I Risk & Business Consulting.
Internal Audit.

Page 1 of 19



Executive Summary

As part of the Fiscal Year 2016 Internal Audit plan, Internal Audit {IA) performed a review of open audit recommendations from prior audit reports to verify the
implementation status reported by management. Open recommendations from the following audits were evaluated:

- 2010 Contracts Audit

- 2013 Toll Revenue Audit

- 2014 Maintenance & Safety Plan Audit

- 2015 Intelligent Transportation Security (ITS) Systems Security Review
- 2015 Back Office Customer Call Center Review

- 2015 COSO Framework Governance Review

- 2015 Ethics Policy Compliance Review

- 2016 Contracts Audit

- 2016 Bond Financing Review

- 2016 ROW Legal Counsel Procurement & Invoice Audit
- 2016 Toll Revenue Audit

Internal Audit last reviewed the status of open audit recommendations in January 2016. Results were reported to the Audit Committee at that time.

This review was completed as of August 2016, and consisted of meetings with management to determine the status of open audit recommendations and
performing testing of management's response and status. In addition, only those recommendations that remained open at the time of the last review have been

included in this report. If a recommendation was completed as of January 15, 2016, no further work was performed and the recommendation was not included for
review in this report.

Internal Audit did not include or follow-up on the recommendation and management action plan from the 2015 Sensitive Data Review. The management action

plan was to move the sensitive data identified to an appropriate location or to delete the data. Confirmation that sensitive data was moved or deleted would
require an additional project and re-scan of selected systems with a data loss prevention (DLP) tool.

Testing performed included inquiry with the employees responsible for completing the recommendations and obtaining documentation evidence to confirm
management's reported status and explanation. In instances where the evidence obtained did not agree with management's status, discussions with management
were held and the differences were resolved.

There were no instances where management and Internal Audit did not come to an agreement on the status of a recommendation.

Page 2 of 19



Recommendations Summary

. Open as of New Completed as of In Progress as of
Audit i Past Due
January 15, 2016 Recommendations August 31, 2016 August 31, 2016*

2010 Contracts Audit 1 0 0 1 1
2013 Toll Revenue Audit 1 0] 0 1 1
2014 Maintenance & Safety Plan 1 0 0 1 1
2015 Intelligent Transportation Security 9 0 7 2 1
(ITS) Systems Security Review
2015 Back Office Cust CallC

: ac ice Customer Call Center a 0 A 0 0
Review
2015 COSO F kG

: ramework Governance 5 0 2 0 0
Review
2015 Ethics Policy Compliance Review 4 0 a 0 0
2016 Contracts Audit 2 0 1 1 1
2016 Bond Financing Review 1 0 1 0 0
201(? ROW L.egal Counsel Procurement & 0 2 1 1 1
Invoice Audit
2016 Toll Revenue Audit 0 6 5 1 0
Total 25 8 25 8 6

*8 recommendations are classified as "In Progress." 6 of these recommendations are considered "Past Due."

Page 3 of 19




Summary of Past Due Management Action Plans

# Audit

Management Action Plan

Summary of Status as of

Responsible Pa Due Date
P y August 31, 2016
Original:
12/31/13
Revised:
Toll Operations will require pa ds to b d f 12/31/1
P _I willrequiré p ss.wor N Bt Turnover in the IT department has delayed the implementation of this action plan. in /31115
approvals in any new toll collection software Mahmood Haq, Manager of . i S—
. . . e addition, the change to a password based approval key would be a fairly significant change to .
. procured by the Authority or its existing software if it |IT; s R ) Revised:
1 |2010 Contracts Audit |’ R ) . the existing system and the system is being reviewed for replacement. Currently, the IT
is retained and that the password be changedona  |David Wynne, Director of R ) . 3/31/16
X ) department plans to implement the recommendation by the revised due date unless a
regular basis by the system. Toll Operations . i R
business decision to delay is made by management. .
Revised:
9/30/16
Revised:
12/31/16
Original:
7/1/15
The Authority currently has automating certain Revised:
aspects of the Attendant’s Shift Record log as a Per discussion with David Wynne, Director of Toll Operations, this recommendation will be 4/30/16.
5 2013 Toll Revenue function in the planned Toll System Replacement David Wynne, Director of  |implemented as a function in the planned Toll System Replacement (TSR) project. The
Audit project that is currently ongoing at this time. The Toll Operations Request for Proposal (RFP) has been awarded and the new system is currently in Revised:
Authority would expect to have the new system in development. 1/31/17'
place and operating by July 1, 2015.
Revised:
4/30/17
Original:
12/31/14
The Authority will develop written procedures to
3 2014 Maintenance & |document the pertinent aspects of the Authority’s  |Claude Miller, Director of  |Staffing changes within the department have delayed the completion of the action plan. The Revised:
Safety Plan maintenance and inspection operations in regards to |Maintenance procedures document will be finalized on or before the revised due date. 12/31/15
bridges, overhead structures, and roadways.
Revised:
10/1/16

Page 4 of 19




Summary of Past Due Management Action Plans

# Audit

Management Action Plan

Responsible Party

Summary of Status as of

August 31, 2016

Due Date

2015 intelligent
Transportation Security
{ITS) Systems Security
Review

This document is exempt from public records disclosure pursuant to F.S. 282.318. It shall not be copied or distributed in any manner. It
may not be inspected or reviewed by any persons other than those authorized by CFX to receive it.

Original:
6/30/15

Revised:
12/31/15

Revised:
6/30/16

Revised:
3/31/17

S |2016 Contracts Audit

Contract Specialists within the maintenance
department will implement the use of a
“Subcontractor Status Report” as part of monthly
checklist of contract requirement monitoring and
require the vendor to provide the listing of
subcontractors along with their monthly invoice.
Additionally, the Contract Specialist will compare the
listing provided against the subcontractor approval
forms submitted to confirm compliance. The
Contract Specialist will also maintain a spreadsheet
of subcontractor use and seek Board approval if the
amounts approach $25,000.

Claude Miller, Director of
Maintenance

The Asset Maintenance/Routine Inspection Monthly Subcontractor Status Report was
created and sent out to prime contractors. The Authority is currently working with the prime
contractors to receive the completed reports on a recurring basis. In addition, the Authority
has requested the listing of subcontractors and related approval forms be submitted by the
prime contractor, but has not received all forms as of this update. Therefore, additional time
is required to complete the action plan. Once these items are completed, the tracking
spreadsheet will be finalized and the recommended monitoring process will be implemented.

Original:
2/1/2016

Revised:
4/1/16

Revised:
12/31/16

2016 ROW Legal
6 |Counsel Procurement
& Invoice Audit

Initially, each Right of Way outside counsel or
responsible party within the Authority will confirm
the amount paid in the cumulative payments
columns of the monthly TIFIA reports to ensure
accuracy of the current spreadsheet. If there is a
discrepancy identified, the responsible party will
research and correct the discrepancy in the TIFIA
reports. Going forward, each firm or responsible
party will prepare a separate monthly TIFIA report
summarizing the activity in the parcels assigned to
that firm. The Accounting Department will audit the
spreadsheets for accuracy using source
documentation, which will be made available to the
party responsible for performing the review of the
spreadsheets.

Linda Lanosa, Deputy
General Counsel

Michael Carlisle, Manager of
Accounting and Finance

Each firm/responsible party has begun certifying that the monthly TIFIA report contains
accurate information and acknowledges that the information will be relied upon for the
Authority's reporting requirements.

The Finance Department has audited historical data and continues to audit the relocation
costs, CFX parcels, and the Lowndes parcels and related expert costs monthly. However, the
Authority is relying on the signed certifications for Shutts & Bowen and Winderweedle
parcels and those monthly reports have not been subject to review by the Finance
Department as of the date of this update. Due to staffing changes, the audit process is being
transitioned to Michael Carlisle, Manager of Accounting and Finance, starting in October. The
action plan is only considered partially complete as the Shutts & Bowen and Winderweedle
monthly reports have not been subject to audit by the Finance Department and more time is
necessary to complete the action plan.

Qriginal:
8/1/16

Revised:
1/31/17

Page 5 of 19




Appendix A

Recommendations Detail

Page 6 of 19



Contracts Audit
January 2011 Recommendations
Status of Recommendations

Intermal At Disarvatian Intermal Audit Recommendation Management Response Action Plan Pam¥| " pugust 31, 2016 ifestin Results Due Date |\ mm:::;m

7. Account Adjustment Approval Limits in TRIMS: Section IV B in the scope of services section of the ACS contract Indicates mehmymuuuluemmn SAHCSC | The Authority concurs hat movieg 3 Toll Operalions will require passwords ta [Par discimon with Mahmeod Hag,

that 8 1-PA55 ac Svar $200 tial E-PASS scoount sdiwstments in extess of $500 must be{Supervisor petswnrd. Father thas PING. 10 20000we [assword Dased apprivid s o s best mirret, [be wied Sor appiovili i sy rew 10l Waragar e 1T, and David Wynne, Director of

[approved by an ACS manager in TRIMS . Currently, TRIMS is not conligured to prevent the approval of adj ta i InTRIMS. are  |However, the change to a password based  [ollection software procured by the Tail Operations, trnover in the IT

[personal E-PASS accounts in excess of $200 by CSC Supenvisors. Internal Audit obtained ail adjustments processed in TRIMS |required to be changed on a regular basis by the |approval key would be a fairly significant |Authority or its existing software (f itis |depainrmant has delayed the Original:

hetween August 1, 2009 and September 30, 2010 and noted that 93 of 140 adjustments to private accounts between $200  [system) change to the existing system. The current retained and that the password he changed| [irpserurtabon of the sction plan. 10 12/3113

land $500 were approved in TRIMS by CSC Supervisors instead of a manager, as required vyt s cunmndy being revewed far bn a regular basis by the system sdditicn, the change Lo a password based
feplacement as part of the Toll System aparoval key would be a fairly significant Revised:

As a mitigating control, ACS indicated that all adjustments are reviewed by the Financial Analyst and Accounting Assistant, Replacement (T5R} project. Making these Mahmood Hag, Mange 10 the existing system and the 12/31/15

{with the exception of voids, which should only be approved by CSC Managers in TRIMS. However, Internal Audit noted that changes now may be waste of valuable IT Manager of iT; vevtem is being reviewed lor replacement

482 of 587 void adjustments were appraved in TRIMS by CSC Supervisars Fescurses i the Cutrerd syliem were 1o be David Wynne, In Progrews. Thar Autharity has discursed maiing thit Revised: contid
|disposed of in the near term. Based an the Director of Toil FPast Due) |change st part of a new back-office system, | 3/31/16

Furthermore, a CSC Manager or CSC Supervisar enters their PIN in TRIMS to approve adjustments; however, PINs are never putcome ot the TSR project the Authority Operations rather than making changes in the current )

hanged which may result in the sharing of PINs between employees would make this change as a part of a newly wpitem that will be replaced This decton Revised:

orocured system or would be developed and coewid Gy the action plan furtherby 2-3 | 9/30/16

Data analytics were performed related Lo the approval of adjustments in excess of $200 to personal E-PASS accounts and i the gsisting n yaars. Currently, the iT department plans to

5500 to commercial E-PASS accounts and no adjustments were identified for additional follow-up; however, the was determined Lhat we would be retaining | stamient the recommendation by the Revised:

strengthening of the controls related to the review and appraval of adjustments in TRIMS may reduce the risk of fraud the existing system rivitod du date uniesd & buvness gooson | 12/31/16

0 delay i mads by mandgemant

Page 7 of 19




Tall Revenue Audit

March 2013 Recommendstions
Stanus of Recommendations
e Management Status at iA of

Intemal Audit Observation Response Management Action Plan Responslble Party 3, 2006 Testing Results Due Date s
. Potential B i The g o 1 1he toll cofection s 3 Ve Authariey. currendly tun this [Por dacianon with David Witine, Divaior of Toll Dpetations,
highlighted above total upgronsmately 51,000 for 1l sle momth periad ended December 2012. A roat causifb) The Authority should also consider recommendation as a functlen in the ths recommendation will be implemented as a function in
of this appears to be the manual nature of the Attendant’s Shift Record used as a reconciling item during toff automating certain aspects of the Attendant’s planned Toll System Replacement project the planned Toll System Replacement (TSR) project. The
collections audits, for which third party contractor auditors are required to make assumptions as to what is [Shift Record log by integrating the unusual that is currently ongoing at this time. The (Request for Proposal (RFP) has been awarded and the new
being communicated by the TSA winlaziom, 1 Authority would expect to have the new system is currently in development, Original:

transactions within the MLT system. This would system in place and operating by July 1, 7115
Additionally, during the review of the toll collections audit , Internal Audit found that system purges and  [reduce the subjectivity of the FTS auditor's 2015 Internal Audit obtained the System Requirements advertised
|everse run through transactians, system functions used to reset the toll lane if the lane server is out of syncfinterpretation of the manual ASR log. & part of the RFP and determined specification 151722 | Revised:
[generates an expected revenue amount . Ao Lhe ion on the Unusual Occu repont for these . sty The yystem sboultd have ot dowrn meny codes lor 4/30/16
transactions have the same averdass description as smail vehicle transactions that do not engage the toll Concur David Wynne, Director n Progress unusual Internal Audit the TSR Conau
lane treadles. The third party contractor uses the Unusual Occurrence report to reduce the expected of Toli Operations (Pt Do) project was awarded to TransCore, LP on 5/14/15 as Revised:
revenue for the system purges and reverse run through transactions, while maintaining the expected i by Board minutes. Per David Wynne, Director of | 1/31/17
revenue related to the smaller vehicles that do not engage the treadies Toll Operations, the work s in progress with Transcore and
the first go-live date is scheduled for April 2017 in the Coral | Revised:

Internal Audit performed a firvarw o 1fie awerelass Lramacticns (esclding purges, re-syncs, and reverse run Hills plaza group based on the current status of the project. | a/30/17

throughs) and found that the third party contractor reversed the expected revenue inapprapriately In 4 out
of 25 transactions tested, an error rate of 13% The potential extrapolated variance when appied to all
overclass transactions for the six month period ended December 31, 2012 is estimated to be appraximazely

Page 8 of 19




Malntanance and Safuty Plan Compllance
April 2014 Recommaendations

Status of Recommaendations
Internal Audit Observation Internal Audit Racommendation M:"';';ﬂ":"' Management Action Plan Responsible Party M’m:;f;;’ = Testing Rasuhy DueDawe |, 2 E"'"""‘:":_
1. Wiitten Masntenanor snd Salety Procedures: The Authaniy’s Maintenance and Safety  [The Authority should develop written " desktop” procedures that clearly The Autnority will develop written procedures to Per discussion with Claude Miller, Director of
activities follow the State of Florida and Federal guidelines and the Master Bond document key aspects of the Authority's maintenance and inspection document the pertinent aspects of the Authority’s Maintenance, statliog changes within the
Resolutlon Covenants from a palicy perspective. However, in regards ta the methad of program, including: Internal procedures for managing and maintaining the maintenance and inspection operations in regards { yed the f the Original:
accomplishing the applicable standards, there are no written procedures documenting the{Authority's roadways and bridges, Asset tracking, Role of third party to bridges, overhead structures, and roadways. #ction plan. The procedunes document win be 12/31/14
Authority’s maintenance and inspection program. Written procedures are an integral mainteiance & ipedlon sgieemisnis (schedudling of inspections, repairs, of bedare the inzernal
of the ing each critical business process. ana tuts of 5 Claude Milier, Director of In Progress Audit obtained and reviewed the current draft of the | Reyised:

help govem, in writing, the actions necessary to fulfill the organization's policy for Wtk arder, request, and Concur Maintenance (Past Due} procedures manual and noted the dratt s currently | 12/31/15 Concur

. Protodures pi 2 i the pursuit of achieving the objectives of the [deficiency response deadlines, Incidence and Emergency Response process, lundergoing review by the Director of Maintenance,
process, help reduce and increase di of pertinent if i GEC proce. Revised:
10 those imvohved in the process. 10/1/16

Page 9 of 19




Syst

February 2015 Recommendatlons
Status of Recommendations
Management Status at 1A Evaluation of
Internal Audit Obsarvation nternal Audit Rasponse Management Actian Plan Rasponsible Party August31, 2016 Tasting Results Dua Date Managemant's Status
This document is exempt from public records disclosure pursuant to F.S. 282,318. It shall not be copied or distributed in any manner. It may X This document is exempt from public records disclosure pursuant to F.S, 282.318.
not be inspected or reviewed by any persons other than those authorized by CFX to receive it. TCTV IQ”"}E' ct;f of In Progress It shall not be copled or distributed in any manner. It may not be inspected or Conoar
ions . . o -
Ll reviewed by any persons other than those authorized by CFX to receive it.
Corey Quinn, Chief of
Technology/Operations Completed Cancur
Corey Quinn, Chief of
Technology/Operations Completed Concur
Corey Quinn, Chief of In Progress Coneur
Technology/Operations {Past Due)
Corey Quinn, Chief of
G e
Technology/Operations Campletsd il
Corey Quinn, Chief of
Technology/Operations Completed R
Corey Quinn, Chief of
Technology/Operations Completed Concur
Corey Quinn, Chief of
C
Technology/Operations Completed aneur
Corey Quinn, Chief of
C
Technaology/Operations Completed oncur

Page 10 of 19




Back Office Customas Cal Conter Review
May 2015 Recoramendations
Stetis of Recoraraendations

[ N—— [P —— "::;z"' Managemant Action Plan Nespormibla Parry """‘:_":'3'""?;;"" o Tetting Retuls Oue Cutn M.':_::."":,':"g:_
[=m=vrr 0 g Ve ki [0 | TFere 27 oo o 52 s S 4o 5 48 AT TR Aoy & 11 T1e process B procaring and Impiementng a naw VR [Per iscussion with David Wynne, Shweass 58 100 Cotyors, i rerm VA Fyviein fs 300 meomeiont Tho]
i s i s s i s b 4 gt e utoes st |delivered w cusmmers comacting the Authory by Impraving ystem lor E-PASS which wil include back-up hardware, and the
cuted to the Vector Steps. which pravides addional messaging and rowtes the s i i i o, . v
svallable call center agent nore callecs i anline servcing. The Authariry should corsicer the inaddition, the Authorlty wil provide the recommendetlons t@ the betermine if thewere implemented 1 Improve the overall cusiamer call experiene Internal Aud noted the
Ljcints above and conduct a thorough evaluation af vectar W s o e
ichin the VA and Vecior sieps the jstencies and pe—t - ~ t any IVA cechnolagy, If the Authority were o agree 1o
efivered Lo the customer, which If carrected. couid Improve the ovecall v e - 1 The call prompts now utlize arly the 2 lead experience
eapenence: 0L ot et et 21 LT 10 s e g
2 The inter d i e
LThecall i brupt and fPer i Wynne, Dmeaor ot
| ncoraisient customer experience forsstans experence andprofessioral ow Vi N B iy B B R i ey
yrainy i iy e Bming of rarsitions wl
1 th i gt - rigrg Pl liddressed a5 some arsiuans previously had perlods of lang slence
and music while the customer s an-nold and as the custamer anslions fram one vector step oy
ancther b ved the “rweet i s smas” e “repeat optlans”. However,
fth cusomer dos nc espond 10 romts, ke aeSamedaty gt P . T a4
3 & PASS maln meny has redundant optiors o “return t main menu” and "repeat cdla sernce using option "0 " i
stomer using option 0" wi wynm rmcwramu Optratars te Aoy id e wan s 3 o caamer i e Ul i
may ead 1o prolenged call nendiing tmes Concur W as, Maneger of 11 Completed 10 resch an agent i sigred vith the desired 6730/16 Cantut
lestomer eperienca
4 Hours of operation end kst g Tis
L 0 o
hough th cenier  cpen The mail menu alsa drects premoded operation and ocations by
Wait Time (EWT" callers of wail Wynne, Directer of Toll Operatians, management fe|
masand prsmuaty e esrs  crine serucing that it wauld be benallcialf the custome 15 mad fihe whey choose
flscortinue thecaltforany reason. fthe Aushory does 1ot provide he hoursof perarin ac the beginring
foel this,
o e tormae Sy s e i o e reguired o pravide he e e . th process
5 The IVR now leverages Esumaled Wait Time {'EWT") prompting to inform callers of walt dmes and
R Loty i sy
" i " b
R can quary atTiouEs Tiow i Uon o | TGImErove the qualty essurance process, the Authory should B =t sttt v G ey e, Bivacar of s
435ess, maasure and address specific befaviors that are aligned Lo call handiing performance | dentfy a stardardized call liow for the types of calls handled by tef J e sz proces il it el iy s nen {operatlons, and noted the p effective 2/29/2016, and d by Al ). EGls
obtectves, such s cal anle e and uss of ACW, The stareiard segments of cll low Includeal ener et eniily the speciic bebaviors and skls hatshauld measure business objectives. Program Mg Il Aucs s e Authorty's call canar qulty assurance program s slgne 03
Sreeting Caller Identfication, Caller Validaton Service ldentificaban Service Delivery and e il Tri I flow and the Yes. 115
- quallry process w allow X
10.CSR's an align quality busi is and o
ta ns i & handie time] s
4geralized manner and s not ilgned i stardardized cal flow. The current cal center qualt
Lassurance forms are made up of 23 Yes or No questions and S additional questions thatare o [ou—— v Concat
i o e o 10, The form does mon s vt (6 GuionyImeonms 173015
1 w0 it e P e o e g
Revied:
s 3116
teasiole Aligni form i Nlow enables the use of gradl
sz am rrinten g
fimns A Vieiior T Ry it s Lo 42 L DA ot 40 £ Toe G ST G | o v £ v e o [ Compte - v Batusbior, wen Dawd Wyre, Soevioer o1 1% pm-#ooms, 0nd loann Chizler, Director of 1T,
hatuneald tall nari be paid oriine. th be improve website, that woulc| feex e the s e
nake the. process of making sevents oiine more ntat. Links 1o unpald ol paymen gt e vssman wxargmas and E PASS activty An E PASS website and eveluate which recommendation can be implemantzd tnr Bt v o D4 et are i b a plctures were added 1o direct users Lo the £/
1ra nat plainiy visible and require additional naviga tian that we: IpAss wetsite for UTN payment
133 and would help ! n zn wwdaes 184118
naking unpald il notlee paymens and © lenish and/or purchase 3 ransponder at the end of each e ~ D of tow
i addlien, o the e o i feat o . Joreraton, 11 ncteca eminder o replensor EPASScstomers and  remirder o urcras  arepande t
llewer than 5) where the agern reminded the caller that purchasing a Uarsporeler or replenishing foera ‘:s".""': Jmm" 6 e lor nan.cuslomers was added The p effecove 2/25, dby|  Oeghe
their ccount would allow them (o avold toll vislations in the Tuture. [Also, call center agent raining should also be considered o v i the o pe! Oirecses of T Allie Braswell Ir, EGIS Program Manager. 6/
] number to route callers to the call center in order Lo imit the e
aso, prow s T pmmm trarsponder n cases where an instae | Zawt [number of call center calls recelved by the receptionist oot ) Comgiria ¢ nuwmnom-m Diensior o Tial Cpwaiiers, and Joann Chizert, Direcror ol IT, | Revsas Canc
These calis are recelved by P Yol vicletion or Deratived: Spoar sl b nier Intorral Audlf  13/30713
omere iaion Tnése mrovemens can Gehect s and ecce v o OPpce [t st calland e e opions were pmvmd 10 the caller (UTN/UTC, E PASS aczaunt, other
s recaived by che callcenter ! feats) The dded wil it ' rather thal  Revised:
3 Joann Chislext Director of 1T L et o e resamminiy ity
e &
rovided on the maln number to route callers i the cellcenter in 328115
e

Page 11 of 19



M=y 2015 Recommerdations
Statin of Recommandatiors
\ntarmal Auie Observation Imamal Auk Racommandation iy Managarert Action Plan Respormibés Perty i Tosting Results Dus Date ':::'_‘::';:_
(T a7y &F (s hanird By £°8 ATrory &9 BTt Wabl Fd =g Byt O L] e Torer - " [E7T= e ree— Brtar ol T T ——— =
o calingiine 0's hez can be Inked T mtee o 1Tk letad the analysls customer acoounts. A1 origial;
Thi the i hol the analysis The Authority will determine If It is (easidlo @ Incorporate ba! phone numbers Ir | call Center: brained by T and lasded 1S
ane-third of the total @ik time of the aall all Is greater than 40 Emﬁ, ‘this would Indicate » o the jiatabase IT ren an SQL query w match the phone numbers In the lisc igl it the phone numbars repscered fl
denoly the caller via the phone number thaL they ara calling Irom) and wobtaln calls and theretyy T o e o Revised:
ihe Information required [ identfy the Customar and access thelr account s efficlantly a5 [-rsube-same ol fanie S iy O i Lstomer accounts (26%) As & resultof this Bnalysis. the IT d!pln.mgnlwl“ not pursue call automaricn at ol iyd
weslbie could sigrificanty reduce the handle tme of cals 2 T et by o aran e i b vo BV Lrairing i Tl opm,‘m’ "t Mahmaes Ha, ime, but may consider adding the lesure In the furre
BT (e ATy WO SO e e frarorar wrt rezae e el Cortrl” Wittt v e et Maoagec of IT 2
<. e Concur liraming. Completed 2 1A obtained Wi Diruiar o ] e il
nbound calts and Klentify the informaon needed to access the 2 Gevet Wiyte, Oiwpcsar Yoot rena b 1 M e smnesly 1 yse. e b | PR s NSk, Tho operation Fitvvs
sy restcrneny, cosmsen, srter P ey 2em Operations rocees e folawing «sechngenerl cllow frm e Gretingto Srnded g T st
SN — of the procedure i m improve tha effclercy and he cal e
e call service. The procedure was eHectiva 2/25/2016, and approved by Allic Braswellr , o Progam 11730135
vAanager
Revisad:
33118

Page 12 of 19




Status of Recommendations

upload from Mahmood Haq, Manager of (T, and noted the procedures
i bevel of detail 1 1he ity be
rompleted by anyone generally competent for the position.

Internal Audit Observation indernal Audit Recemmendation M;:::::’" Management Action Plan Respansble Party M':':‘::’::’sz';::’ o Testing Results Due Date M_“ l""::::';:m
The Authority ify staff tranang needs and To inceepatate beading practice, thr Authosy should Ther Authonty Sdded Sooutisn mgardeyg tamisg noeds to inzeinal Audit obtained and reviewed the Performance Evaluation Form and
approve the training Although staff training budgets are includedin the  [perform an annual training needs assessment during the annual performance evaluation process, Performance related process documentation and determined a question was added to the
Human Resource (HR) budget, the Human Resource department does not  [the performance evaluation process to identify evatuation forms were updated to request input on raining form regarding areas where additional training may be needed. This
monitor the training needs of the organuzation, Leading practice is for evelopment opportunities throughout the needs from the employee and management, |zompanent of the recommendation has been marked complete.
Human Resources to perform periodic assessments of the traming needs  [brganization
across the ion to pramote and ¥ wiog an vl Farm 3 1A also obtained the Training Request Form Michelle Maikisch, Chief of Staff, | Ongwal:
[continuing education, The Authatity shouid shso dewriog an rll Trameng recommended and implement a review process to ensure and noted the Training Request Form contains two levels of approvals 12/31/15
Request Form to dacument the business reason for Consur training expenditures are approved and meet business Michelle Maikisch, Chief of Staff Completed {{supervisar/Manager and Director) to ensure the expenditure is reviewed Concur
Aadonaiy, § lrmaksed raineg reQUE (OO 5 5 N FEcE 10 pach training, cost, sttendeas, and Human Resourees lobjectives. and meets the business objectives Revised:
document the business reason for each iraining expanditure and (o ensure |approval. The additian of th Torm wil farmalios the 3/31/16
the appropriate approvals are obtained oversight process for training requests and help
ensure training expenditures align with business
needs, goals, and budgelary restnctions
writen are an ntegrat of the five 3 i dnkion The Authority will identify and updale the deskiop Internal Audit obtained the Human Resource Depariment Desktop
surrounding each ctical business process. Procedures help govern, in procedures for key processes within the IT and HR procedures for key processes within the IT and HR Procedures which were updated in July 2016 from Michelie Maikisch, Chief of
writing, the actions necessary to fulfill the organization’s policy for t0 inchute the tewwl of et departments to include the appropriate level of detail 5taff, and noted the Desktop Procedures include Setup, Maintenance and
operations. The IT and HR departments have not updated desktop The Desktop Procedures shoutd allow anyone Securdty of HR Records; Processes/Recruiting and Hiring; Training; Benefils
with the iate level of detall to provide enerally competent for the position to perform the Evaliation; Noward aod
guidance in the pursutt of achieving the objectives of the process, help fob duties, Wecognition; Employee Terminations; and HR Forms. Internal Audn noted the | Original:
reduce and i istri of pertinent Mihole Mdinich, chiet of Siati procedures have appropriate level of delail to provide guidance n the pursuil |  2/28/16
irdormation to those b in th proet. Congur Completed of achieving the objectives of the process, - Coneul
Mahmood Hag, Manager of [T L
internal Audn obtained the updated desktop procedures for the benefits file H: ://30//1:
1T-8/31/1

Page 13 of 19




Ethica Policy Complance Review
Recommendations

June 2005
Status of Recommandatiom
[T T ee—— el dad Rocm et st "::':":" Manegement Action Plan Responslbia Parey Amln:;' Teating Revuts Dus Deta | 1A Evabustion of Managemant's Strun
(Tt rmas Sncsoe JEA TUDHL Eburs PY I Rtrr TS BT P, £y, 0 Coiatlanis e Pl |1 7 Pt o et Sommis £ 1 S oo, 10 1T Atronty wi 8efine and Gocamert Cirers Cawa, G
- “ svemy [ty vt Bt a8 frmet i s e T B struccions for completing the conflctof nteres| JE———
ttest thelr Jutgment i interest and lacltate s ion thatore farm |pacrre torm ate. CF has & comractor (Evalve) designing and hosting the now CFX website. The
|arocess, Firi d the Authority's Care of Ethic D e e Tee— £ The Authary will develop & Conle ofteres
‘- = Jpe— P Wautomate the an Includs « page L3 has the eshicy information an the new websize
bieveioped » confiic inated 10 al beard members, employees, and consubants [ nonlzoring pracess for conllic of interest
[annually. The Autherity s department marisgers dentfy the consultans that provida professional servicas within their Hiscosure forms. Tha Authorky wil enalla e L 5 v
i i The i Tre Aoty inusd idesiier ot d wacking of o= e e i
(o1 0 Bourd members and emaiaees. Al compled dislosre s ar submitied 1o the Auihory's Exsusive _frosasesfr thedbcinure form v evemmencof s Cathtof Uisclosure farms to the Procurement Deparument | Petsmsiai Cantiat Cricmnst horm irairuttions
Aasistant,wh Information necassary t complete the farm, such |iwarest it o e 3 The Authoriy wil define and decument
5 istngs of rarge Courny and Gy of Orlanda regitered ooy and coridor ipitngs s [ehe dis Insiructions, deadiine, and sugy\em:mil inlormation ormequences for consullants that are riot b . =
ncluded in The review of the dentificd tndlcorridor maps, ownership lstngs, et I allow usecs b uplosd the resporsive to the Authorlry's monltor and track th ;i
following areas for improvement: iompleted disciosure form; and facitate acking and recencion of equest t complete he disclosure form i g s P i, mor, ot ssrer mpdion 1vaig
¥ should coider ceneralizing werest Incernal Unda Larosa St
L Althagh e confictof nteresk discosure lorm nd excarpts of e Authorlty s ey = the confiictof
consultans the formal i 0 complexz the farm. For Based on e current 1 the Authority and 1 ) form via & mal to i o
eumpk the Authoray Buidance on how comultants should respond 1o quastions tatare geared | o plasa. 1 Joe Passiatare, General Counddf % - o
ot T ey, WA a1 P SRGTR S e 2 Linda Lanosa Depury General viae mall or FTP being used
2 The process to diswibute and monior recelpt of 4 s barms S s Concur Coursel; Mahmocd Haq, Complated enaliz forms recived and wack employee, Boildlccmmlme meimber, and vendor respanses | 511716 Coneur
: ] Manager of [T; Anech Willarms, 1 . ireal Ay
¥ bereg
o increma y and allow quickly v ) The Authorlry ssasd SEto wd ctruosuence Jox Cenastem Direetoraf Frecurement -lelgm\lned that only faur employess had the form p
imembers, employees. and corsultants wh have not complied with the requirement ihat do not return the complead conflict of interest disclosure form, [#i0e Pazsiamwre, General Counsy e as of this update. In sfitiom, e Aty o, hewwat e Caimas sty 3% e vinsicd
bt e, e Authrty ha kg e pealis it may e mpesed 2y che Aty Te Actrori Liisciosure torms per The Logal
e Payments i the comulian fs nos i placa to ollow up on the outstareing orms and deLarming hw para
iwssmng e ey e Lresponsive to the Authorly’s request to complete the form, which s similar and enforced lor verdors that have not complied
3
eE i
T B S AR T VRN arey P01 A o Bt o s, £y Vi, Bl Eratarss st | 11 AU S Maragiment o ot heuld reviw 0 reviods T Sy e e e et For Eammr o v Fev oy, G Coae T ot T
disclose whether & relatwe i a regitered lobbyist, and f o, disclose the names of the defirition of *registered Iobbysss” and delarmine |mrasssory o acims - [with the Baard during the 8/10/2015 Board Meeting and further research s currenly being
A the current defirition shauld be revisad to berter address the oblectivas af etermice Il the registered lobbyst defintion feanduced based on the Board's recommendation
e Authoricy has defined the tarm "repistered lobbylst” within the Code of Exhics as any In e thold i revised
tor 1) y orher emplayer;or (2 or any antiyincluding s or e (ratret Aot itanad e remrmad o8 #1815 i o e 3 1VIELY et et o
emplover I princip of his or her psitian & lobbying with arg noted the Board proposed secing p lobbyisL registration al CFX rather than el
s b i maresmind 1 e by s B The City of Orlando and Orange County have established & |councy and the ity of Orlanda regiscrations, us the g7aups that obby CFX may differ Gereral
rocess for lookyst regseration; however, Lake County, Concur Ioe Passialore, Genersl Caunsel Complerad |-ounsel was sskad to research the propasal further and rewrn ko the Board with a s1/6 Corewr
Tranplore, kirpats = Loke, Osceol st in April 2016 Incernal d rewewed the April 1016 Soard
(o oty =y ot mewt s deteviam o T i ousabad i e Bt o d rotad that the f 1 rely on the Orange County and the Ciry
{eireumstances there Is @ potentil for hups with a lobbylst In Lake, Qsceola. or Seminole st
Toe mrr T AT 2 s S| Boar WIEMIERTS Sl S o1 el €3S CETUAton 1 scRnow EagE T it =il rveom et = T —
e o o of ic Gersficate of Completi iy to acknawled, heir %o the Code of Exhics. This wil exhibl £ Leraty e urderstansing and complance ih urdersianding and compliance wich the Code of Exhics has been added to o o
| pives S (s e mepioe o6 [Rasrriny bote a1 Mo € 104 5 ihe Code of Exhics annuslly Going forward, the developed based on the 2015 C1 wil
caniracr, vend: tardard of Coduct and Code of Ethics form to ackrowiedge ity wit ramity variions when trw S f el el the anuncerillcion ot Soaa members dutirg 236 s h process hos
theie review of the Code of Exhics and adherence to the requiremens of the pallcy Addrionally, the Authority shovld corsider noritying vendors when he Cocd thics s modified and requira thar each |aeer ed leze by lnternal Audit
Bt L = =
= v Code o Exhics, which Vendors should reatfirm their fot Camdbees s Gt of £ i MR [per discussion with Anth Willlams, Dractor of Procurement. Lhe Authorky has added the verdor
ch the process In place lor employees and vendors ompliance with the newly adopted Code of Ethlcs by sining o new Gt PR oo 1c be (ollowed when | 571756 eoncur
Acknowledgement of Suardard of Conducr and Code af Exhics el Frocurement ohe Code af Ethics s madified Intarnal Aulc cbtalned a copy of the revised Procurement
¥ ade ol Ethics, |erocedures as evidence. A change hes ot been mate t the Cade af Eshics since the audlt repars
ubscquan to the inception of thelr contract Pa—— [T — "~
ceiom plan clsad a this has bet incorporated into a procedure document
i [Egre— i - e e i i o The Aulinor Ty il aevelop wriktan proceaures © o Tinds Tt o aacument
Bacumeriing e e e complance monicringprocess Wi an and tthe v locumen the Aulharicy's exhics actvicies and the -
crtical b o el In writing, the acti Ancluding: and reviewed the
1uiFil the erganization s palicy fer operarions, Procedures provide auldinu i the pursultof achleving Lhe abjectives of |- Canflct o Inerest disclosure process ey ssidiane
e sroctss, S et = wd raves ose invalved In the | Training and angaing education = Joe Passlatore, General Counsel Compries 51116 Camur
orocess

Campliance review process
- Semie o wt

Page 14 of 19




years of the contract term (2011 and 2012), the surety bonds were provided to
the Authority in the amount of $3,327,333 88 resultng in an underinsured
exposure of $70,571 72 each year. The error was corrected by the contractor for
2013 and subsequent years; however the error was not identified by the
[Authority as part of s normal process.

type of BOnd Mont fotrsn
require a bond at the
commencement of the
project.

[ Aseth Wilkaen, Ohrector of
Procurement

bond Internal Audit obtained the surety bond continualion and
ined th was reviewed for s with the

[contract In addition, this step will be added to the deskiop

inthe to ensure this is
perkormed on st angong b

Lasmaey 2016 Becommmerdstins
Status of Recommendations
intarmal Audit Observation Internal Management Action Plan Resparsible Party m::::u:;‘s;:: b Testing Resuls Due Date Ma::":’::"s:m
i ¥ han gt D el ™ v ¥ vemaee Contract & el Per discussion with Claude Miller, Director of Maintenance, and
by vendors. Sutxr ey e - |sheckiist similar to ane employed for construction and implement the use of a "Subcontractor Status Report” as part Carrie Baker, Contract Support Specialist, the Assel

inclusian in the vendor propesal and bid or (2) the completion of an ineei to allow for f Lhe use o ¥ cheeklist of cantract requi monitaring and i ine Inspection Monthly Status
i 2 o T e fof Alisting of s rapere e vendcr 15 privide the g of subssngiacon Report ted and sent out to pr The Authority
|san be approved by the Pracurement Director for amounts up to 525,000 and  |shessit e 1ekuded i B dheckiat and ihe checkint along with therr manthly invoice. Additionally, the Contract s currently working wath the prime contractors to receive the .
i equires Board Agproval far any amount in excess of $25,000. The Jorgensen  [ihould be used 10 track the approval of new The Specialist wilk compare the listing provided against the [compieted reparts on a recurring basis. In addition, the Authority has Original:

ontract states that all subcantractors intended to be utilized by Jorgensen must [sontractor should also be required ta submit a detail of subcontractor approval forms submitted 1o confirm requested the listing of subcantractors and related approval forms be 2112006
[ne appraved by the Authority in advance. the use of subcantractars with each vendor invoice. <ompliance. The Conlract Specialrt will also maintain a § submitied by the prime contractor, but has not recewved all farms as

Corer <preadsheet of subcontraclor use and seek Board approval if | 3488 Miller, Director of ™ Pagrest. [of this update Therefore, additional time 1 required 10 complete the Revised: p—
lorgensen utilized twenty-si since the i of th the amounts appraach $25,000 Maintenance et s action plan. Once these items are completed, the tracking 41118
|0# thete mvety sax sbentsscion. fre wavs disclosed in the original proposal spreadsheet wil be finalized and the recammended moritonng )
[4nd cantract approved by ihe Board. largensen did not complete the process will be implemented Revised:
- N o redbest for o . 12/31/16
{ubcontractors. In addition, eight of the twenty-one subcartractors were paid
[amounts in excess of 525,000, which required Board approval
The jorgenann Conuiact Sorwies G Valen that he ¥ The Contract Speciaimty within the imnteance Sepenment Pt discussion with Gaude Miller, Director of Maintenance, the
s required to acquire a surety bond for the annual vaiue of the contract This 15 ~|Contract Management to prepare a cheeklist identifying wil verify the amount of the surety bond complies with the rewew of surety bond compliance has been added to the Director's
Loy, d dividing it by five key contract terms related to each contract. The contract contract requi as parcof the i [cantract compliance checkiist Internal Audit abtained a copy of the
term).In the event of a Supplemental Agreement, the surety bond must be I manager should perform a detailed review of contract } checkdar. i addito, hie PrOCH povert Separtsnnt wil updated checklist and noted that a step is included to verify the
updated to reflect the new conlract value. atieant animally The Authority concursand |oooo secondary review of the compliance with the surety ety bond amosnt 6 R
hecklist to ensure vendors are in compliance with notes thatless thansix {4 ooicement. Claude Miller, Director of

The Jorgensen contract had an initially cantract value of $16,89,526, which |contract terms and conditions prior 0 releasing the last ceptracs it ney Maintenance Per discussion with Aneth Williams, Directar of Procurement, the o
resubts in an annual bond requirement of $3,397,905 60 During the initial two  |eesides saymert e ihe yadt Authority are subject ta this Completed surety bond check was perfarmed upon expiration of the ICS surery | UPOM expiration of surety bond Coms

Page 15 of 19




Bond Finanicing Review
January 2016 Recommendatlons

reoort o e inlabie 10 Dbk

Status of Recommendations
Internal Audit Observation Imemnal Action Plan Responsible Purty M'""m:;‘s:;:': . Testing Results Due Outz | 1A Evaluation of Management's Status
The CF K Deot Policy, section X), states that at least twice each year, the Board shall recetve a  [CFX's Fimance Department should comply with its. Terami o e i the gy Whowid B changed. P04 GOS0 waN Lad Lumibard, CFO, the Authaety™s Dedt
report on the staws of its debt. The report shall at a minimum include: Dbt Py and propare snd prese the semi [now that CFX's variable rate debt accounts for Policy has remained the same and a semi-annual debt repart
- Amount and percantage af total debt by categories: annual delt reports to the Board bess tham 199 of the portobe, A fepart wil be s required and was submitted to the Board. Internal Audit
- Natural fixed kiven to the Board at the next financial [obtained the Semi-Annual Debt Report from the Central
- Synthetic fixed workshop Florida Expressway Authority wabsite. Internal Audit noted
- Natural variable the Semi-annual Debit Report was dated March 25, 2016 and
- Synthetic variatlle signed by Lisa Lumbard, CFO. The Report includes 3 repors:
- Current mark-to-market value of all interest rate exchange agreements Conaur Lisa Lumbard, CFQ Completed Current mark-to-mark value of intevest rate exchange 41716 Coneur
- Hatoresl e porformands I 58 vasudin race Dosdy Hating i hy
- Any changes in ratings for credit enhancers and swap counterparty [amount and percentage of total deht by categories. The
wial O Q1
The most recent debt status repart was completed on July 22, 2013. The report is not being
prepared twice per year as required in the Debt Palicy.

Page 16 of 19



Fadruary P16 Reuemmendatsng
Mt of heemmentatimn)
. 8 e
Internal Audit Obssrvation Resporse Memagemest dctimn Plan v mgist 81, 45 Tasting Rezuls Dusouts |l e chatus
23457 5 Trbeamor LA oraLwELans France AP IhnOwA U ALL [TIA] 1 [T Akl iy Shoait 1ormaiile =5 5oty oty Thch Mgt oF WY SUBLSE coumats OF TSNt Sarty it [reT = —y
ek oty ezt of :ihe i process by assigning a he Authority will confirm the amount pald in the cumulative payments reates their own separate monthly TIFIA report summarizing the activity in the parcels
Federal government and will be required Lo repart final costs for the projectin (process ownerls) respansible for campiling TIFIA |columns ol the monthly TIFIA reports to ensure accuracy af the current fissianed Lo them Each firmy/responsible parly certifies that the monthly TIFIA repart
Jurder to obtain the TIFIA loan funding, During the audil, we reviewed various  data, reconciling TIFIA data to source documents, [spreadsheet )l there is a discrepancy identitied, the resporsible party i wnformation that the information will be relied upon
ources of Right of Way data, including the Right of Way Committee minutes, [and veritying the completeness and accuracy of the e s a1 4 Pt (e Sanweaney n o TR sest Caing lor b Autuirity Frimant, C st o e s
Lxcel tracking files from outside legal counsel, and the monthly TIFIA reports, | nformatien included in the monthiy TIFIA reports forward, each firm or responsible party will prepare a separate monthh
ang spwmtt ] itionally, there is i iz I ing the activity in the parcels assigned to that
ources Specifically, the TIFIA reports contained formula errars, data thal was |ight of Way activity into one spreadsheet ar irm The Accounting Deparcment will audit the spreadsheels for P St with st D, CHOMW il Comuiliny, P et he anshiy meport Hioe)
ncorrectly ralled forward from manth-to manth, in addition to classification  {database in order ta minimize (ar siiminate) the [sss sy whing saer socemeraicion, which wif be made sslete I revem
issues for closed parcels thal were listed o were i and monitori i e 4Ty rcorSs lor perisrming S rrview of e 1nnetvern fay the Authority. Once comments ar changes are incorporaled, the report is pravided to
g i v THFA are 25 I flenn Pressimane, Director of Engineering Glenn reviews and approves befre the
sts for later funding Irom the Federal government There are mulliple parties ompiled report s submitted ta the TIFIA contact
nvolved in creating and reviewing the TIFIA reports, including Legal Counsel and -
linance personnel, which il mput or rewiew parts of the report ILis criical that Linde Lanosa, Deputy General Counsel er iscussion with Aneth Williams, Girector of Procurement, the finance Department fas | .y /1y
Ihe data i the TIFIA reports be kept complete and accurate lor monitaring and Pl Michael Carlisle, Manager of Accounting InPage udited historical data and continues to audit Lhe relocation costs, CFX parcels, and the s
eporting purposes There is an opportunity Lo improve the quality and reliabilic arE et o Dol Lowndes parcels and refated exper costs monthly. intemal Audic oblained emans rom | L
|ot the data gathered for presentation in the TIFIA reports fAneth willams swidencing her rewew of the relocation costs, CFX parcels, and Lowndes | /00
parcels. Internal Audit alse determined through inspection of Aneth's review package that
ihe costs included in the manthly report were agreed to supporting documentation The
[Autharity is relying on the signed certilications for Shutts & Bowen and Windsrweedie
narceis and those monthly reports have not been subject to review by the Finance
[Pepartment as of the date of this update. Oue Lo staffing changes, the audit process is
neing transitioned to Michae Carlsle, Manager of Aceounting and Finance, starting in
|october. The action plan s anly cansidered partially complete s the Shutts & Bowen and
-a <44 vy the Finance Department
ard more time is necessary to complece the action plan
[T AtPerty's Gl Cowrutt Frwrms ¥ovr s 50f Jees DIIEd Dy external |11 Mgl DRBM Lo Ve rierm o Srvds [ 2gal Department will perform a review of invaces ta (1) ensure that [P discussion wilh Carrie BaKer, frw Marager of Dot #01 Comalance, i1 hiraroe
gl of Wy el st r dsiuray e SarEr . flor ' (i Ul Gt direct casts billed conform to authorized casts detailed in the contract | Department performs the initial review ol ROW counsel invoices Invaice review includes
e e s ot e contan - o athoriaes amat (2) supporting documentatlon is provided for direct easts review o direet costs (or appropriate supporting decumentation
fexpenses such as telecopy, local telephone, data processing, courier or cther  [the contract, (2} supporting documentation is
ervices thatwould be deemed ta be part of the firm's overhead expenses  [aevasins ke ginea s, g [0 64 oxsmrt iz in addition, the Finance Department will perform a secondary review of [Per discussian wilh Joe Passiatare, General Counsel, the Legal Department review for
fowever, the firm will notify General Counse) of any large copy and print jobs i | ; reviewed and approved by external legal counsel the invaices (o include the direct costs, supporting documentation, and anet e i, nox paid If pre-approval or
ot ko 4 detarTnamar b e 550 48 12 w16 Coyieg m S manded 4 | The Finance Department personnel should canduct lappraval of the expert invoices upporting documentatian s not provided In addition, CFX will no longer reimburse for
fexscnsnd 4 secondary review of invoices lor supporting ntermal copying casts and has deducted copying charges Irom the [ast ROW legal counsel
documentation and attorney approval while invoice
ntemal Audit testing identilied that one esternal Right of Way counsel billed thifsswiming srerces foe rites 5@ geaommes g
;:{‘::{i for 51,4;0:(::py ard printing :ha:s without p‘::r autm.x:un by [ S =
oo phie agsas "' ; : “f*'; bt p Carear Carrie Baker, Manager of Contract Completed e Conews
. Compliance
e sring miiere.
Jin msstesn, isocrting cotumm LS A MEwNE 1008 DNl B TR

hegal caunsel for direct costs incurred, such as court reparters and depasition
iresatniphs st Ait mpting el (P2 ore metzina Rghe of Wy
fooumiet st 1 Mathority tor 51,138 i bourt resonent and couer oAb
However, invoice support was not provided for these costs and the legal invoice
fva approved for payment

Page 17 of 19




Toll Revenue Audit
March 2016 Revommendations
Status of Recommendations

“Two (2] of the 30-day TAPAS could not be located

vew hire is ot being performed timely
for TSAs and TSAs are mst prscrading the wasioe tppes o del]
ransactions, the potential likelihoad of error and lost tall revenue thal may not
be caught timely is increased.

Internal Audit Observation Internal Audit Recommendation Action Plan Responsible Party M'm"’:;‘f;r b Testing Resuhs Oue Date m':::::”;::"s;'m
| T T ———— PrTT—pTae— T— = FTr— gy e a 3 [¥er discussion with Michael Carisle, Manager of Accounling and Finance,
journal entries as part of the month-end reconciliation process to true-up the  [over the revenue reconcilialion process By creating a procedura esklop procedure document wilh detatied steps he AV Revenue Recognition Procedures document was created internal
[seneral ledger balance for totai revenue earned. As part of the audw, Internal  |document, Autharity persannel will have a set of instructions to for the performer and reviewer of the month-end [Audit obtained the AVI Revenue Recognition Procedures from the
Audit identified that Lhe Oecember 2015 AV) revenue for the Airport Plazawas [tehiescn sbwts ertimimng Uhe seccmedatian ol tull revenee, and & o e Manager ol Accounting and Finance and determined through inspection
[anderstated by $136,083 due to an error performing the month-end [dacument Lo leverage when rokes or responsibilities change wittun the v it ther e ep-d-ateanitratioons fov bt perhorimance and neviem of
econcilation and journal entries The December 2015 AVI reverue accounting department. The procedural document should indude the monthly toll revenue reconciiation
ecanciliation was reviewed by appropriate personnel; however, the ecror was | detailed procedures for performing and reviewing the monihly revenue Michael Carbsle, Manager of
ot detected during Lhe review process. The error appeared to result from a liation. As a leading practice, the review procedures shauld be Conus ‘Accounting and Finance Conplnird 9/30/16 Ef
recent change in assigned responsibilities within the Accounting & Finance [periormed at a level of precision to include recaiculation of the month-
deparment end lentry for Snd i Frvkiem O thw el VD
revenue bialance per Eden for agreement to the TAIMS Plaza Revenue
[summary report
Per the contract berween Lhe Authonty and URS, the third party Toll Operations [& review of = Repovt should be e cownliog n Fouree Desartment wil 28 the [(Fre Ssciovacn w1k Mot Carlale, Marager of &ezounterg snd Fnance.
Contractor, URS s responsible for loss of revenue il lanes are not staffed et 1o St fvechy. review of the Special Evenls Report to the month- e Special Events Report was included on the calendar of the month-end
laccording to the CFX approved staing schiedule. During the audit, Internal  |are caplured for billing to appropriale parties, including URS <o ensure al of the Special Events are caplured for billing to
Audit idenlified two inscances where the Authonty was not reimbursed for foss anpropriate parlies. internal Audil obtained Lhe 2016 August calendar of
kel treron when The lae e e ataPled ippropeaatity in Soth mtaeces. i ihe month-end procedures Irom the Manager o Accounting and Finance,
lane was placed i Special Events mode due to an employee medical emergency and determined through inspection that the Special Events Report was
for iliness to allow trafhc 10 pass Lhvough the cash toll lane. The Special Events added to prompl the review process
kmode was appropriately recarded on the Special Events report and Coticet Michael Carlisle, Manager of Completed 6/30/16 Cibew
appropriately provided ta Lhe AUINGriTy; hewerve, The AdifonTy | Atsuning Accounting and Finance
Lund Finance department did not ile the request for reimbursement from URS.
The total to the Authonity i 136 for the two
pecial Events identified by Internal Audit. Although not a sigaificant amaunt,
opportun)Lies exst to improve Lhe process and procedures to prevent a more
significant ssue in the future
1naccatdance with the Cenitral Forida Expressway Authorizy s Toll Operations [Vee Fatammeret that o AalFes iy and Herd parly Somir cror comoes 1R s e rand the rreemmenaation a5 ol Fv Stunuon with Gn Goll, gt Director, 1o brrasce.
S1andard Operating Procedures (SOP), URS performs a revew of the Plaza etemriaiing e Lare Montr Checkiat 2170 i & fion exsenea rrpoc March 4, 2016 . - e Mt Atinkty Maitas et ob
{actimity Monitor at least every two hours 1o review the TRIMS systemand to | The Lane Monitor Checklist is an internal document and functions [per the recommendation. Internal Audil abtained a Plaza Activity Monitor
mitigate potential revenue loss due 10 equipment failure, This review is pramarfy as & wirmmary o te Pz Actly Mofvess detal, Ewtrad, e Isheet and verified
by the Toll Service Sup using a Lane Moritee ontractor should consider a rewsion ta their h that the Toll
Checklist For one day tested, in six (6) of the 15 plazas reviewed, Lt wit# She [fernce Manager or Supervisor signs directly an the Plaza Activity
or more instances where the review of the Plaza Actnvily Montor was nat Morutor sheets, which are date and time-stamped source documents and
mented within the two hoo it ol st PRAE trwtt. Ty
4 summary sheet, the Toll Service Managers or Supervisors can complete Coroa Dan Goff, Project Director compleled Pr— Concur
Per the contract between Lhe Authority and URS, the third party Toll Operatiors |the documentation of this task mare eFficiently in addition Lo hawng
(om0 s20r, UKS i ronperidin Bor iona of ieverne i equipmaent ladure u nat snore time to focus on other responsibilines
ieporied Lo the Syslem Hardware Maintenance Contractor wittin 2 hours
Therelore, the impact to the Authority if Lhe pracedure is not followed would be
mirurnal as URS would reimburse the Authority for actual ost revenue
determined by the system or an eslmate of kost revenue based on historical
data.
(amrmtaraie walh e Crrtral Floeada Dgerivmay Authority s 1ol peeaiom [The URS Avisviant (G Frbruary 5. 2008 WA 0 Pued o9 Eacet Per discussion with Dan Golf, Project Director, Plaza Managers are
tandard Operaling Procedures {SOP), Toll Service Managers (TSMs) monilor 16 Lrack and monitor the status of TAPA due dales and required follow- Mseaduheet o ik the duc dete and the notified of Lhe requirements for completion of TAPAS. The Assistant
new hire performance via a 30-day Toll Attendant up We that the be prawded to the letion date for TAPAS. The will Project Director maintairs a tracking log and rolifies Managers of any
(TAPA), A 60-day follow-up TAPA will be completed as needed Lapproprials TSM bi-monthly via email and that upcoming TAPA due be shared with the Plaza Managers on the 15th TAPAS thal are past due, requests explanations, and follows up to
lates be discussed during the bi-monthly Plaza Managers’ meeting a0 X0ah of wah monan, 1n aditen, 1w |completion. Internal Audit oblained the Lracking log from the Project
(Of the 20 selected Toll Service Altendants (TSAs) hired during the period July 1, nformation will be reviewed at Lhe bi-manthly Director and determined through inspection that the spreadsheet tracks
2015 through December 31, 2015, the following issues were identified: Maza Managers’ meeting Action Plan has been 4 TARA dum it P
fully implemented as of March 3, 2016 u of sending the tracking log on specific dates, the log is reviewed
~Fourleen (14) of the 30-day TAPAS were not completed within 30 days of the werrily by (1 Asaistaiis Piject Durectar. In addition, Plaza Managers are
lemployees’ hire date and weie completed greater than two weeks late fian o, Propect Dwecise Compleled " el Fach the satin e o8 et Completed Chncar

Page 18 of 19




Toll Ravese Aedit

e
tlepartment manager should send the completed employee termination
|checkist to the EGIS HR Generalist or designee 10 sign and date the
fchecking o eidenar af revrw,

{manager and the program manager approved by signing and dating the
Lchecklist.

MasTh J016 Recommendations.
Statun f Rrcommandation
Management Status at IA Evaluation of
Intemal Audit Observation Entmimal Asdis Recomemendation Plan Respansible Party st a1, 20168 Testing Results Duedate |\ ement's Status
[Fivcheck, cash, money order transactians recered via mail are processed i the |#r ricmrmersa that e Aoty parchane niw sarvesiance equpmeen [T Astreansty wil procare av depioy the perded [Pee Grumcn wiih F1o0 fervr, Wanagrr of §-PASS & Flais Operaram.
iback office mailroom or counting room located at the Authonty's 1 ool aliewn foe X0 femapreni! and EGA wil perdorm rondoneg o and Mahmood Haq, Manager of IT, procurement of cameras lor use
T aikdew macstonng of the proteiing snd hending of paphents. the saloom [ days storage of surveillance data, at minimum, for retrieval as needed the cameras at least weekly The procurement of the Authority's facilities to enhance security is being planned
#rvd T COuTEng PO atF Undet vidad Limer a MneRence | We recommend that footage be recorded in digilal format and {the system will be included in an upcoming by the (T department. The cameras for the call center mait room and
| maintzined for a period of at least two weeks to one month based on | ramera installation project counting room will be included in this procurement. The work is currently
Based on inquiry of EGIS management and Authority IT personnel, camera [ieading practices, Additionally, the Authority should consider assigning ichedubed 1o take place in Q1 of 2017, 5o the due date was revised to Oviginal:
surveillance is not being actively monitored by either party and the camera he responsibility of periodic monitoring of Lhe security cameras Lo EGIS ’ [sccomodate the current project plan 12/31/16
ootage eireval The [T 1o be y ot e ol e Concur lm“:;um:: gl i Frogen Cancur
incannd that age the Authority {mailroom and counting room where checks, cash, and money orders get Revised:
upgraded 1o the Windgws 7 apevting system due to compatibility ssues lprocessed 33117
Management was aware of the obsolete camera system and mads 3 business
Secminn 10 net upgtade the yystem o the Lwe,
[0 amiogees It meeh 0 (he [ PATS Call Conits and VoWlon [ortemen]  [We [EcoMMENd That a1 MITsywe b ireahen Eheckbit Bt Srvehoped TTGR =il erpiertiena (1ot reommerditon e [Fee = 2 Aller Bratwell, Pragr e, the mmpicyee
Section (VES) group are issued a unique badge and passcode for accessing the  |and dstributed to all department managers. Department managers an HR Generalsst is idenlified and hired e all departrmeert
e an e which ared [mansgrrs mternal Aoce ¢
par to collect the terminated employee’s hadge and notify Lhe |rallecting an employee’s badge and notifying the Authotity's IT lemployee checklist from the Program Manager and detrmined through
IT Help Desk via an online ti that the employee’s access fig pa of the tevmination within a defined period of time (e g 3 |nspection that there is a checklist item Lo ensure the termination form
be termi i i Duning testing, Intemal Audit i two(2)  [days) The department manager should sign and date the checklist to | was sent to CFX IT for processing, Internal Audit further determined
n s aar Corxur Allie Braswell, Program Manager Completed ] 12/31/16 [

Page 19 of 19




	Agenda
	Minutes 6-23-16
	External Audit Matters
	Internal Audit Matters
	Fiscal 2016 Internal Audit Plan
	Procurement & Contract Billing Audits
	Prior Audit Recommendations Follow-Up


